

**In the Matter Of:**  
**HAYMARKET DuPAGE LLC**

---

**REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS**

*October 12, 2021*

---

***Grove & Associates Reporting & Video Services***  
***2100 Manchester Road, Suite 964***  
***Wheaton, IL 60187***  
***(630) 462-0060***  
***www.groveandassoc.com***





1 PRESENT:

2 MR. JEFFREY PRUYN, Mayor;  
3 MR. PATRICK POWERS, Trustee;  
4 MR. FRANK J. MADARAS, Trustee;  
5 MS. ELLEN LEAHY, Trustee;  
6 MR. DINO GAVANES, Trustee;  
7 MS. KATHY LINSNER, Trustee;  
8 MR. JEFF AIANI, Trustee;

9 ALSO PRESENT:

10 MR. MO KHAN, Village Planner;  
11 MS. DEANNE CURELO;  
12 MS. JODY CONIDI, Clerk;

13 HERVAS, CONDON & BERSANI, P.C., by  
14 MR. CHARLES E. HERVAS and MS. YORDANA WYSOCKI,  
15 333 Pierce Road, Suite 195  
16 Itasca, Illinois 60143  
17 (630) 773-4774  
18 chervas@hcbattorneys.com  
19 Appeared on behalf of the Village of Itasca;

20 DASPIN & AUMENT, LLP, by  
21 MS. BRIDGET M. O'KEEFE,  
22 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 2200  
23 Chicago, Illinois 60606  
24 (312) 258-3795  
bokeefe@daspinaument.com

and

BOND, DICKSON & CONWAY, by  
MS. MARY E. DICKSON,  
400 South Knoll Street, Unit C  
Wheaton, Illinois 60187  
(630) 681-1000  
marydickson@bond-dickson.com  
Appeared on behalf of Haymarket DuPage, LLC;

1 PRESENT: (Cont'd.)

2 JOHNSON & BELL, LTD., by  
3 STEPHEN P. ELLENBECKER  
4 33 West Monroe Street, Suite 2700  
5 Chicago, IL 60603  
6 (312) 984-0221  
7 ellenbeckers@jbltd.com

8 Appeared on behalf of 865 West Irving Park  
9 Road, LLC;

10 OTTOSEN, Di NOLFO, HASENBLAG & CASTALDO, LTD., by  
11 MR. STEPHEN H. DI NOLFO  
12 1804 North Naper Boulevard, Suite 350  
13 Naperville, Illinois 60563  
14 (630) 682-0085  
15 sdinolfo@ottosenlaw.com

16 Appeared on behalf of Itasca Fire Protection  
17 District.  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24

1           MAYOR PRUYN: Okay. I would like to call the  
2 special committee of the whole meeting agenda for  
3 October 12th, 2021, to order. If the clerk could  
4 please take the roll call.

5           MS. CONIDI: Trustee Aiani. 07:01

6           TRUSTEE AIANI: Present.

7           MS. CONIDI: Trustee Gavaness.

8           TRUSTEE GAVANES: Present.

9           MS. CONIDI: Trustee Leahy.

10          TRUSTEE LEAHY: Here. 07:01

11          MS. CONIDI: Trustee Linsner.

12          TRUSTEE LINSNER: Here.

13          MS. CONIDI: Trustee Madaras, absent.

14                   Trustee Powers.

15          TRUSTEE POWERS: Here. 07:01

16          MAYOR PRUYN: If you could all stand and join  
17 me in the pledge.

18                   (Pledge of Allegiance recited.)

19          MAYOR PRUYN: Now I will open up for audience  
20 participation, but this is audience participation 07:01  
21 only related to items on tonight's agenda, which  
22 would be the Haymarket hearing.

23                   So if anyone has anything that's not  
24 related to Haymarket, the floor is yours.

1 All right. Okay. Now, we'll go to  
2 committee reports. Before we do turn it over to the  
3 community development, I do have a statement to read  
4 for this evening:

5 Good evening. The Village Board has 07:02  
6 called a special meeting of the committee of the  
7 whole tonight in order to hear public comment on Plan  
8 Commission Case PC 19-014. The petitioner and owner  
9 is Haymarket DuPage, LLC. The location is 860 West  
10 Irving Park Road. The request is for petition for a 07:02  
11 planned development by special use with exceptions  
12 and Class 1 site plan approval all in order to permit  
13 a mixed-use residential and healthcare facility and  
14 other accessory uses in the B2 community business  
15 district at 860 West Irving Park Road. 07:02

16 Last month, after over a year of  
17 hearings, the Plan Commission recommended that the  
18 Village Board deny the petition. The Plan Commission  
19 is a recommending body and has referred the position  
20 to the Board for a final decision. 07:02

21 Tonight, the Board is hearing public  
22 comment on the petition. If we do not complete  
23 public comment tonight, the special meeting will be  
24 continued to tomorrow night at 7:00 o'clock to

1 complete the public comment. At another special  
2 meeting later this month, the Board will hear  
3 presentations from the petitioner and the interested  
4 parties before deliberating on the matter.

5 The procedures for tonight are as 07:03  
6 follows: Pre-registration was required for public  
7 comment on this matter. The Village Board allowed  
8 registration on-line until noon today and  
9 registration in person at the Village hall until  
10 7:00 p.m. The Board will hear public comments in 07:03  
11 order of the registration. Please be informed that  
12 the trustees have access to the entire record before  
13 the Plan Commission, including all testimony,  
14 exhibits, arguments, and the findings of the  
15 Commission. 07:03

16 You are encouraged to limit your  
17 comments to three to five minutes so that we can get  
18 through as many people as possible in a timely  
19 manner. Groups may designate a spokesperson to speak  
20 rather than have each individual member speak, and 07:04  
21 residents who are interested in the proceedings but  
22 do not wish to speak are encouraged to watch the  
23 meeting live through the Village's YouTube channel.

24 I will now turn it over to Trustee

1 Gavanes and the Community Development Committee.

2 (Trustee Madaras joins the  
3 meeting.)

4 TRUSTEE GAVANES: We can begin our comments as  
5 soon as we are ready. As soon as the court reporter 07:04  
6 is ready. The mayor has indicated the rules, so we  
7 can begin.

8 MAYOR PRUYN: Mo, you have the list? You'll  
9 call the individuals up, then, in order?

10 MR. KHAN: Yes. 07:04

11 TRUSTEE GAVANES: Thank you.

12 MS. FINN: Hello. My name is Jessica Finn. I  
13 live at 804 North Maple in Itasca.

14 There are so many reasons why  
15 Haymarket in Itasca would be a detriment to our town 07:05  
16 and the patients of the facility for me to even get  
17 into, so I will focus on the two that I feel most  
18 important; transportation and the impact on EMS  
19 services.

20 I've lived in Itasca for almost 07:05  
21 eight years. Within that time, I've developed  
22 amazing friendships, and I have become involved  
23 within both school districts as well as various  
24 community organizations. I'm not here to speak today

1 on behalf of the organization I work for. I am  
2 speaking as a resident of Itasca that also works as  
3 an advocate for those who are stigmatized,  
4 marginalized, and in crisis in DuPage County. I'm  
5 here to serve and help give a voice to those who need 07:05  
6 it. I work to give people the help they need to  
7 recover. I see survivors who are dealing with  
8 substance abuse issues or who are victims because of  
9 someone else's substance abuse.

10 I work within every hospital with a 07:05  
11 trauma center in DuPage County. I also work with 36  
12 different law enforcement agencies. I advocate for  
13 the fair and equal rights of those individuals. I  
14 have sought out this line of work because I wanted to  
15 make a difference in my community. I wanted to end 07:06  
16 the stigmatization of those in crisis.

17 Because of my work, I know we are  
18 the furthest away from any hospital in DuPage County.  
19 I also know those in active addiction who need help  
20 don't have access to cars or they shouldn't be 07:06  
21 driving. There's no transportation from any hospital  
22 in DuPage County to Itasca. Elmhurst, Edwards, or  
23 even the closest, Glen Oaks, there's no  
24 transportation at all. We're not easy for anyone in

1 crisis to get to. In fact, each of the hospitals I  
2 mentioned have their own substance abuse behavioral  
3 health hospital on their campus. They will not send  
4 a patient to a suburb far away when they have a bed  
5 for them within feet of their ER.

6 Patients cannot take a bus or train  
7 from anywhere in DuPage County to a Haymarket in  
8 Itasca. We have zero access to public transportation  
9 in DuPage County, zero. The people that Haymarket  
10 claim so desperately need our help will not have  
11 access to the facility in Itasca. You can't treat  
12 anyone if they aren't able to get to your facility.  
13 Haymarket is marginalizing those who don't have  
14 access to vehicles or wealth.

15 Haymarket is also using "Nimbe" to  
16 draw public support, instead of facts. The truth is  
17 we lack infrastructure to support any facility this  
18 large. A nursing home this large would impact our  
19 EMS and hurt patients as well as the town. This is  
20 not an attack on people who need treatment. This is  
21 because we do not have the EMS capabilities. The  
22 fact that Haymarket would risk patients' lives on a  
23 daily basis instead of putting the facility where it  
24 would be able to receive adequate EMS response is

1 ridiculous. The claim that "hope starts at  
2 Haymarket" only exists if you don't have any type of  
3 health emergency. When you have one ambulance, any  
4 extra calls taxes your resources. When you share  
5 resources, any extra calls causes a ripple effect  
6 that would impact surrounding towns.

07:08

07:08

07:08

07:08

7 Haymarket resorts to emotional  
8 manipulation to try to bulldoze us. We've been lied  
9 to, bullied, and used as pawns in political  
10 campaigns. No one testified that a specific Itasca  
11 location was necessary, just that facilities were  
12 necessary. No one from Elite testified to confirm  
13 any of the random promises of the phantom contract  
14 that was alluded to. No one from any task force  
15 testified under oath that such a large facility in a  
16 such a small town was the way to go. No one that  
17 actually works with people in crisis in DuPage County  
18 testified for Haymarket.

19 As trustees, you have been elected  
20 to be our voice. You've been given the power to make  
21 decisions that don't just affect today or tomorrow  
22 but decisions that will make generational impact. I  
23 want you to understand that everyone is watching and  
24 we are invested in our town's future. This decision

1 will impact you, your neighbors, your children, and  
2 grandchildren. This isn't an issue our town will  
3 forget any time soon. In fact, this issue has  
4 spurred interest in our local government and opened  
5 our eyes to what our Mayor and Board does and how it 07:09:  
6 impacts us. So I ask that you listen to facts and  
7 not Haymarket's noise and vote for what is best for  
8 Itasca's residents.

9 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you for your comments.

10 MR. WOLF: Members of the Board, my name is 07:09:  
11 Michael Wolf. I live at 922 Clover Ridge Lane in  
12 Itasca.

13 First, thank you for the opportunity  
14 to comment. I am torn as to whether to ask for  
15 permission to go over the allotted three to five 07:09:  
16 minutes, given that I hope it would help you review  
17 the record to make a decision based on facts, not on  
18 various random statements that have been made. Or I  
19 could attempt to streamline this. I am inclined to  
20 go as long as you are willing to allow. 07:10:

21 For the record, my voice does  
22 represent a handful of other Itasca residents, who I  
23 can name later, who have granted that my voice  
24 represent their views as well.

1                   During its closing arguments on  
2     September 8th, Haymarket wanted to get one thing out  
3     of the way. It has been difficult for them to listen  
4     to people accuse them of lying, not being  
5     trustworthy, not being transparent. They called                   07:10:  
6     these accusations "unfounded" based on a lack of  
7     knowledge of the testimony. If you'll allow, I would  
8     like to offer 20 examples from the first half of  
9     Haymarket's closing argument where they continued to  
10    misrepresent facts and not be transparent about a               07:10:  
11   range of topics. These examples directly undermine  
12   their position that their proposal meets our zoning  
13   requirements. As you, the Board, now take up the  
14   decision on their zoning petition, it is critical  
15   that you reason from facts and consider their                   07:11:  
16   evidence objectively.

17                   Items one through five relate to the  
18   supposed Elite contract. Haymarket has leaned  
19   heavily on that contract. It's dated May of this  
20   year. It was introduced into evidence. But that               07:11:  
21   contract is an amendment to a previous contract from  
22   2019 which was never admitted into evidence.  
23   Haymarket witnesses spoke of this contract, made  
24   claims about this contract, but Haymarket never

1 admitted it. No one can objectively evaluate any of  
2 those claims about what was in the contract. The  
3 current contract is in evidence, but how they got  
4 there or what they may have said in the past is all  
5 hearsay.

07:11

6 Two, Haymarket continued to remind  
7 us that Elite is equipped to handle ALS calls.  
8 That's wonderful, but it is not relevant to the  
9 petition because Elite is not contracted to provide  
10 those services to Haymarket. The amended Elite  
11 contract makes zero mention of Elite providing ALS  
12 services to Haymarket. It establishes no performance  
13 metrics or commitments for Elite to respond to ALS  
14 calls from Haymarket. On multiple occasions,  
15 Dr. Lustig falsely claimed that Elite will provide  
16 ALS services to Haymarket. It is not in the  
17 contract, period.

07:12

07:12

18 Three, Haymarket indicated that  
19 Elite ambulances will be staged at three locations;  
20 355 and Thorndale, which doesn't exist anymore, 355  
21 and Army Trail, 355 and Butterfield. The contract  
22 makes no mention at all as to where Elite will stage  
23 its equipment. What Haymarket says and claims about  
24 what Elite might have told them about staging is

07:12

1 hearsay.

2 Four, Haymarket indicated that  
3 Elite's response to calls would be -- and I quote --  
4 "less than 10 minutes, most" -- "less than 20  
5 minutes, most 10 minutes." Less than 20, most 10. 07:13  
6 That's not what the contract says, all. Here's what  
7 the contract says, quote: "Best efforts shall be  
8 made to respond to all Haymarket BLS emergency calls  
9 within 10 to 20 minutes." Best efforts? Best  
10 efforts guarantee nothing in the contract. What 07:13  
11 Haymarket cited in their closing slide deck is, at  
12 best, a exaggeration of the contract.

13 Five, Haymarket said that their  
14 zoning approval could and should be dependent on  
15 their arrangement with Elite. In previous hearings, 07:13  
16 Haymarket also said that they were willing to agree  
17 to terms where the Village could shut them down if  
18 Haymarket is not abiding by the conditions of the  
19 zoning approval. I challenge this Board to come up  
20 with a process it could use to legally, ethically, 07:13  
21 and morally shut down a substance use treatment  
22 facility if the operator dissolves a contract with an  
23 ambulance. Dr. Lustig testified that he had no  
24 vision for how that would work. He left it to the

1 planning commission to figure that part out. Until  
2 Haymarket has any constructive ideas for how they  
3 could be held responsible, their offers are hollow  
4 and misleading. That's one through five.

5 Moving on to demand of the new 07:14  
6 facility on Itasca EMS, item six. In its closing,  
7 Haymarket stated that Itasca EMS responds to an  
8 average of 2.2 calls per day and pointed out that the  
9 2.2 number, quote, "stands unrebutted." I reviewed  
10 the testimony, I might have missed it, but the only 07:14  
11 parties who cited the 2.2 number were counsel. No  
12 witnesses testified to it. You want something  
13 rebutted, admit it into evidence. Until then, it's  
14 just lawyers lawyering.

15 Number seven, there was a known 07:14  
16 discrepancy between numbers reported by IFPD to the  
17 state fire marshal and numbers summarized by the  
18 state fire marshal. This was discussed. The IFPD  
19 stood by those numbers it provided on public record,  
20 and the IFPD could not comment as to how the state 07:15  
21 collated or summarized those numbers. Haymarket  
22 offered no expert analysis of the discrepancy either.  
23 But, then, in its closing argument, Haymarket made an  
24 acquisition that the IFPD provided inaccurate

1 information to the state. That accusation is  
2 unfounded.

3 Eight, as support for its  
4 projections, Haymarket cited the expert analysis of  
5 James Dominik, who originally used 11 comparable 07:15  
6 sites to project EMS needs. Haymarket said that the  
7 comparables provide the same levels of service as  
8 proposed for DuPage. What did they mean by that?  
9 Did they mean that each of the 11 comparables  
10 provides comparable levels of service or the 11 07:15  
11 comparables taken as a whole? Big difference.

12 Mr. Dominik made his selection  
13 criteria clear; licensed level of service, adult  
14 population, not kids, years of operation, and number  
15 of beds. Haymarket's experts did not look at a 07:16  
16 single facility, not one, that is as large as the one  
17 proposed and that provides the breadth of services  
18 proposed. None. In that same data, there were two  
19 kinds of facilities; treatment facilities and  
20 recovery homes. Rather than read you the testimony, 07:16  
21 I would just encourage you to go back and look at  
22 that testimony and decide whether Mr. Dominik  
23 accurately characterized the nature of those 11  
24 facilities.

1                   10, the list of comparables shown by  
2 Haymarket still does not include their West Loop  
3 facility, even though their expert agreed that the  
4 West Loop was the best comp. Again, I will spare you  
5 the reading of the testimony, but I encourage you to  
6 go back and read what was actually said by  
7 Mr. Dominik about the West Loop. And he said, clear  
8 as day, other than his problems with the CAD data, it  
9 was the best comp, and then he later changed his  
10 testimony.

07:16:

07:17:

11                   11, the list of comps still shows  
12 Leyden Family Services, which is weird, because  
13 Dr. Lustig described why Leyden isn't actually a  
14 comp. During his rebuttal testimony, Dr. Lustig was  
15 challenging the testimony of a former Leyden  
16 employee. As part of his rebuttal, he also  
17 challenged how comparable Leyden is. Again, I would  
18 encourage you to go read that testimony and determine  
19 why Leyden was ever considered a comp.

07:17:

07:17:

20                   The next topic hopefully I can shed  
21 some light on moving through some additional items.  
22 Concurrency. Haymarket outlined five reasons why  
23 concurrent calls would not be an issue. Of the five,  
24 three of them weren't relevant. Item No. 12, they

1 said concurrent calls will not be an issue because  
2 Itasca has two pieces of equipment that can handle  
3 ALS calls. So what. Haymarket and the witnesses  
4 have admitted multiple times that they do not have an  
5 operational understanding of our fire protection 07:18  
6 district, so they're in no credible position to  
7 dictate how IFPD deploys its equipment to deal with  
8 concurrency.

9 13, concurrent calls would not be an  
10 issue, according to Haymarket, because Itasca has an 07:18  
11 intergovernmental agreement with Wood Dale and  
12 Roselle. Wood Dale and Roselle, last I checked, are  
13 further away from Itasca than Itasca is, so if Itasca  
14 has to call on those services more frequently, there  
15 will be delayed response. Then that means concurrent 07:18  
16 calls are an issue.

17 14, according to Haymarket,  
18 concurrent calls will not be an issue because Itasca  
19 participates in a mutual aid system. So what. As  
20 IFPD witnesses outlined, that's not relevant. Why 07:18  
21 does Haymarket keep bringing that one up.

22 EMS capacity, 15; Haymarket cited  
23 Itasca's expert to support its claim that IFPD has  
24 the capacity to handle whatever demand might come

1 from this facility. They used a quote in such a  
2 dishonest manner that it bears discussion. They used  
3 this quote from the Fitch report, quote: "Currently,  
4 the Itasca Fire Protection District has sufficient  
5 capacity to absorb the increased demand from the 07:19:  
6 proposed Haymarket DuPage project." Haymarket took  
7 the quote out of context and, worse, they modified  
8 the format of the quote. Here's what the Fitch  
9 report really said, quote: "Currently" --  
10 italicized -- "Currently Fire Protection District has 07:19:  
11 sufficient capacity, dot, dot, dot." However, there  
12 are two issues that arise from that assessment. It  
13 is irresponsible and unethical to do what Haymarket  
14 did with that quote.

15 16, Haymarket said that no IFPD 07:19:  
16 witness could identify a tipping point that would  
17 trigger the need for additional emergency equipment,  
18 and then Haymarket said that it appeared the Village  
19 believed that Haymarket was the tipping point. And  
20 then they said that Haymarket, quote, "questions the 07:20:  
21 factual basis for this assertion." What assertion?  
22 Nobody asserted anything about a tipping point.  
23 Haymarket put words into the Board's mouth, guessed  
24 at what the Village believes, and then argued an

1 assertion that was never made. What is a tipping  
2 point anyway and who asserted that Haymarket was the  
3 tipping point? Nobody did.

4 17, Haymarket attempted to use  
5 testimony from Mr. Moeller to determine this alleged 07:20  
6 tipping point. They said you can use some statistic  
7 called unit hour utilization to speak directly to  
8 this issue of this tipping point. Maybe I missed it,  
9 but I did not see expert testimony about the use of  
10 that statistic or how to determine a tipping point. 07:20  
11 I would encourage the Board to look through that and  
12 determine whether that was actually ever said by  
13 anyone but Haymarket counsel.

14 No. 18, Mr. Moeller's projection of  
15 379 additional calls has been well-referenced, but 07:21  
16 during their closing argument, Haymarket put a  
17 different spin on that number. They characterized  
18 Mr. Moeller's estimate as, quote, "the highest  
19 potential call volume." Mr. Moeller never positioned  
20 his projection as a maximum estimate. It was a 07:21  
21 projection. It was the highest projection from many  
22 of the experts but in no way was it a maximum. For  
23 Haymarket to frame it that way puts an artificial,  
24 dishonest cap on the potential impact of this

1 facility. I, as a resident, am personally concerned  
2 about that, because I feel that all of the estimates  
3 from all of the experts might be too low because of  
4 how difficult it is to truly get to an accurate  
5 picture.

07:21

6 Haymarket has repeatedly highlighted  
7 how their patients can be in crisis and how patients  
8 are regularly turned away or dismissed from their  
9 program. If one of those former patients requires  
10 assistance two blocks away, it doesn't matter where  
11 the incident occurs, that's a former patient of  
12 Haymarket, which, to me, is attributable to them.  
13 But in the call logs, you wouldn't see a call to 860  
14 West Irving. You might see a call to here, the  
15 Village hall. How many of those kinds of calls are  
16 unaccounted for in all of these analyses and  
17 projections we've seen? Haymarket has never owned up  
18 to that kind of issue being theirs to solve anyway,  
19 and they have testified clearly that they cannot  
20 force someone removed from their program to take  
21 transportation somewhere safe. There is no maximum  
22 potential call volume from this proposal and it's  
23 certainly not 379.

07:22

07:22

07:22

24 I have two more where I have done

1 some independent additional calculations that may be  
2 of service to you. No. 19, Haymarket summarized its  
3 discussion of EMS capacity like this, quote: "The  
4 numbers speak for themselves. There will be no  
5 impact." Yes, there was expert testimony that the  
6 additional demand could be absorbed, but no impact?  
7 Their exaggerated summary is misleading and has no  
8 basis at all in the testimony.

07:22

07:23

07:23

07:23

9 Part of the issue goes back to  
10 concurrency. No expert actually stepped forward with  
11 a concurrency analysis, but here's a way to think  
12 about it. If Itasca currently responds to two EMS  
13 calls per day, as claimed by Haymarket, then the  
14 first call, Call A, might be concurrent with Call B.  
15 There's a minimal chance of that happening, but  
16 there's only one pair of calls that might overlap  
17 with each other. If you get 379 additional calls  
18 from Haymarket, for example, that would mean we have  
19 EMS responding to, on average, one more call per day.  
20 No big deal, right? They're only out on calls an  
21 average of two hours a day anyway, so what are the  
22 chances that another call creates an issue? Here's  
23 the problem. There used to only be one pair of calls  
24 that might collide. Now we have a new call, Call C,

1 and Call C could overlap with either of the other two  
2 previous calls. That's two new chances for  
3 concurrency. We started with one, and when you add  
4 one more call, now you have three chances for  
5 overlap. Every additional call doesn't add to the  
6 concurrency problem, it multiplies the problem, and  
7 you see the problem every day, 365 days a year. That  
8 impact is real, and it is not reasonable to expect  
9 the residents of Itasca or the future clients of  
10 Haymarket, for that matter, to accept that risk. The  
11 only reason we're having this discussion is because  
12 Haymarket is petitioning for special use in a suburb  
13 that has very limited infrastructure, so any increase  
14 in demand is noticeable.

15 This leads to No. 20. We have heard  
16 over and over again about the need for treatment  
17 options. And based on what I overheard before this  
18 meeting, you're going to hear more about it tonight.  
19 Nobody disagrees with this. But through all of the  
20 testimony and statements of support, after all the  
21 gut-wrenching stories we've heard, not a single  
22 expert provided specific data on how much treatment  
23 capacity is needed here. Not a single expert  
24 presented any specific data on local factors that

07:24

07:24

07:24

07:25

1 would help us figure out how all of those generic  
2 averages apply to us. What is the need for a  
3 facility here that is scaled to serve over 4500  
4 patients annually?

5 What Haymarket has done, artfully,  
6 is throw around generic estimates of need for  
7 treatment in DuPage and used those to project a need  
8 here. That only works if every area of DuPage is the  
9 same in terms of treatment needs and ability to reach  
10 that treatment. How can you possibly assume that?

07:25

07:25

11 If you look at Haymarket's exhibits, even their  
12 evidence suggests that there might be a lower demand  
13 here than the average across DuPage.

14 They submitted evidence showing  
15 Narcan saves from the Dupage Narcan program. I think  
16 they showed evidence for one year, but the program  
17 goes back to 2014, and there's a website that they  
18 submitted that summarizes that data from 2014 to  
19 2019. Based on those years, Narcan saves are not  
20 evenly distributed throughout the county. In those  
21 years, the average number of saves across the county  
22 was 14 saves for every 100,000 residents per year.  
23 So how does Itasca compare? It's half. Seven saves  
24 per 100,000 residents per year, compared with 14.

07:26

07:26

1 How about our neighbors? Sorry, Medina, you're  
2 unincorporated. I couldn't find your numbers.  
3 They're lumped all together with all the other  
4 unincorporated areas of DuPage.

5 How about Roselle? Nine compared 07:26  
6 with 14. Bloomingdale, 10. Addison, two saves per  
7 100,000 residents per year. Among our nearest  
8 neighbors in DuPage, the only neighbor that is  
9 actually above the DuPage average is Wood Dale, 18.  
10 Combine us and our nearest neighbors -- sorry, 07:27  
11 Medina -- and you get nine saves per year per 100,000  
12 residents. That is 45 percent lower than the county  
13 average. If Narcan saves have anything to do with  
14 the prevalence of addiction in a particular area,  
15 then Itasca and its neighbors have a 07:28  
16 disproportionately lower need than you would project  
17 from the generic numbers. Haymarket has never taken  
18 that kind of data into account when asserting the  
19 need for such a large facility here.

20 I was so close.  
21 (Audio problems with the  
22 microphones and brief recess  
23 taken.)

24 MR. WOLF: There's a second part of

1 Haymarket's evidence that's relevant here. The part  
2 about accessibility of this proposed facility. If  
3 it's not as accessible as they claim, it will reduce  
4 the number of clients it can reach. Haymarket has  
5 projected over 4500 clients per year would use this  
6 facility from DuPage and the collar counties. Based  
7 on what? Based on capacity? That's not how you  
8 estimate this.

07:29

07:29

07:30

07:30

9 It is well-documented that Haymarket  
10 began these hearings with testimony about Itasca and  
11 how accessible it is from other parts of DuPage by  
12 public transportation. Of course that transportation  
13 never actually existed, so who exactly can get to  
14 this facility from where and how? Haymarket has  
15 testified that it would not make business sense to  
16 transport potential clients from Naperville to here,  
17 but beyond that, Haymarket has never offered any  
18 direct answers to questions about what it means for a  
19 treatment center to be close to its clients or  
20 accessible by its clients.

21 So can we do a sanity check? About  
22 a week ago towards the end of the workday, I used  
23 Google Maps to see how to use public transportation  
24 to get to this facility from some suburbs in DuPage

1 within a 10 mile radius of here. That's where they  
2 looked for availability of beds. On the edge of that  
3 circle is West Chicago. West Chicago is two hours  
4 away by public transport one way. Wheaton's closer  
5 than West Chicago, right? Still takes an hour and 45  
6 minutes, because the fastest way to get here by  
7 public transport is by two trains and a bus to get  
8 from one train line to the other.

07:30

07:30

07:31

07:31

9 Bloomingdale should be better,  
10 right? It is. Only takes about 90 minutes from  
11 somewhere in the middle of Bloomingdale to get here.  
12 You want to know the fastest way to get from  
13 Bloomingdale to Itasca? You walk, because there's no  
14 train anywhere in Bloomingdale and it's smack  
15 in-between two train lines. If you actually used  
16 public transportation from Bloomingdale, Bloomingdale  
17 is farther away than West Chicago. So how is this  
18 facility going to serve the projected 4500 clients if  
19 the clients can't get here?

20 Oh, by the way, I was doing my  
21 search during rush hour. Haymarket is open 24 hours  
22 a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year. Off  
23 hours, is Haymarket expecting those in crisis to wait  
24 for a train to take them to a bus to take them to a

1 train and wait to get here?

2 20 misrepresentations later, I do  
3 not find it reasonable for the taxpayers of Itasca to  
4 bear the burden of this facility that will have an  
5 impact on EMS services, both on existing residents 07:31  
6 and the future clients of Haymarket with unclear  
7 benefits to us as residents. 20 misrepresentations  
8 from the first half of their closing argument, which  
9 lasted less than an hour. The second half of their  
10 closing argument covered things like equalized 07:32  
11 assessed value and how Itasca isn't actually a small  
12 suburb.

13 I have every confidence that the  
14 Village will objectively review that testimony as  
15 part of its determination and it can apply its 07:32  
16 knowledge of how our taxes are used to pay for local  
17 services to judge the relevance of their evidence.  
18 When you get down to the facts, the scope of this  
19 proposal does not meet our zoning requirements.

20 I ask that the Board bravely vote to 07:32  
21 reject the proposal in line with the planning  
22 commission's recommendation. Thank you for all that  
23 you do and for considering my comments.

24 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

1 MS. HUMBERT: Okay. My name is Rena Humbert.  
2 You have met me before. This is hard, and I  
3 understand that some of these things are confusing,  
4 but I don't understand the public transportation. I  
5 think the one thing you misunderstand is a lot of  
6 this isn't just about them getting themselves. This  
7 is about people driving -- people will be driving  
8 their loved ones or -- or caregivers --

07:34:

07:34:

9 MR. KHAN: Hold on one second. We're having  
10 audio issues. Hold on one second.

11 (Recess taken.)

07:38:

07:38:

12 MS. HUMBERT: All right. My name is Rena  
13 Humbert, and just to address quickly the public  
14 transportation. You understand that a lot of the  
15 patients that are coming will be driven by friends or  
16 loved ones. This is not all about public  
17 transportation. This is about the ability and  
18 convenience of being able to get their loved one to  
19 someplace, and this is far more ideal than  
20 anything -- any other place in the area to be able to  
21 get their loved one to the treatment they need. It's  
22 not just public transportation. People do have  
23 friends that want recovery and they have friends who  
24 care about them and want to get them there. And

Grove & Associates Reporting

1 Haymarket in Itasca will make that so much easier  
2 than anywhere else and available for them.

3 So, again, the planning commission,  
4 they were lucky enough to have the luxury to vote  
5 according to public perception and not really the 07:39  
6 facts. Because if they did, Haymarket made the  
7 facts. But -- I'm sorry, but if they hadn't, I  
8 wouldn't be here. I wouldn't be spending my time  
9 doing this if Haymarket hadn't made the facts. I  
10 understand -- I'm a homeowner. I understand 07:39  
11 concerns. But they made the facts, and they  
12 fulfilled their obligation to what you required of  
13 them.

14 Some of the things that are, you  
15 know, being said, Haymarket didn't say this, they 07:39  
16 didn't give us -- they weren't required to do that.  
17 They fulfilled their requirements that you set out  
18 for them. Throughout this whole past, you know,  
19 period of the last two years, there has been a  
20 misrepresentation of Haymarket and it has been 07:39  
21 negative. And I know that Itasca does not want to be  
22 seen as a town that shows a negative light, but it's  
23 been done in a clear way when you look at the wording  
24 that has been put out there. One example is how the

1 school board consistently spoke about the high cost  
2 of children with IEPs within the district. Even  
3 Ms. Smith -- and I understand she may not realize  
4 what she said -- referred to "high-risk  
5 preschoolers." Was she talking about Itasca  
6 residents' high-risk preschoolers? No, she was  
7 referring to the potential and the thought that  
8 Haymarket's residents could have high-risk  
9 preschoolers with absolutely no proof or reason to  
10 believe that that was true at all.

11 And this is evident throughout all  
12 the testimony that has darkened the actual facts and  
13 insight of what is happening in -- what is trying to  
14 happen here. I looked up the terms of high-risk  
15 preschooler and, instead of reading out loud what it  
16 means, because it's not good when someone refers to  
17 people that way or children that way, I'll let you do  
18 it. The entire hearing consisted of inflammatory  
19 words just like that.

20 There was a document -- a group of  
21 papers of supposedly 3,000 signed petitions handed in  
22 that was accepted into testimony claiming to all be  
23 Itasca residents who were against Haymarket residing  
24 here. Yet once they were actually allowed to be

1 examined, the petitions were incorrect in its  
2 wording, many of them were falsely signed by  
3 different people, and many weren't even from Itasca  
4 when they actually did put an address on there.

5 Itasca [sic] has been accused of not 07:41:  
6 proving all the things that they claim but they have.  
7 They come forth and been very forthright in their  
8 proving of what is going on and what is going to be  
9 happening. It just wasn't something anyone wanted to  
10 hear. And I mean this with all due respect. If the 07:42:  
11 Board of directors are our leaders, it cannot look on  
12 public or popular perception. They do not have that  
13 luxury. If they vote -- if you vote against  
14 Haymarket at this point, after the proof that has  
15 been given to you, your vote will forever be bought 07:42:  
16 and your integrity will forever be in question,  
17 because they did their job.

18 And it doesn't matter if you like  
19 what they did, the job they did. They did their job.  
20 They proved to you what you said prove to us. Bring 07:42:  
21 to us the proof this is not going to impact. They  
22 did that. And for you now to be worried about the  
23 neighbors not liking you or the backlash of what's  
24 going to happen in the public perception of you,

1 unfortunately, as leaders, you don't have that  
2 luxury. You have to be the leaders and not the  
3 followers at this point. I hope and I believe in you  
4 that way, and I know it's going to be hard. I don't  
5 envy your position at all. I feel for you having to 07:43  
6 make that decision. As a leader, at times I've had  
7 to make really tough decisions, too, that have not  
8 been popular. But the facts have to speak for  
9 themselves, and you have to listen to those and not  
10 the twisted ended perception of what the public wants 07:43  
11 you to think. Thank you.

12 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

13 MS. KOZIARA: Good evening. My name is  
14 Colleen Koziara, and I reside at 224 South Walnut  
15 Street in Itasca. I'm the owner and CEO of a company 07:44  
16 by the name of Beyond Bingo. I specifically am an  
17 expert in programming for seniors, those most often  
18 with Alzheimer's disease and related dementia, and I  
19 work to care for them and provide multidimensional  
20 programming for them and to train their caregivers, 07:44  
21 both familial and professional.

22 And I want to take the opportunity  
23 this evening to ask us to look at this maybe in a  
24 little bit different way than we might have. I know

1 you've all seen all the numbers. You've heard all  
2 the testimony. Everybody is very educated and knows  
3 what is going to impact EMS. And I live on Walnut  
4 Street. I know exactly where the paramedics go for  
5 their 2.2 calls a day, because they go right by me.

07:44

6           Years and years and years ago --  
7 I've been working with seniors for almost 30 years.  
8 At one point in time, consistent care and appropriate  
9 care for those with Alzheimer's was seen as drugging  
10 them into a stupor and tying them to their chair.

07:45

11 That was known as chemical and physical restraint,  
12 and it was considered perfectly acceptable, because  
13 that's what we knew. My entire profession and my  
14 business is based on the fact that we learned  
15 something new, and by learning something new, we  
16 decided to do better and we did.

07:45

17           During that same period of time when  
18 we looked at that illness as though it was some  
19 horrible thing, companies that wanted to build  
20 Alzheimer's facilities had to sit through meetings  
21 just like this, because the residents thought that  
22 old people with that illness were terrifying and  
23 potentially dangerous to children. Now, our  
24 perceptions have changed dramatically because now

07:45

1 there's probably no one in this room that doesn't  
2 know somebody who is dealing with that illness.

3 Our perceptions of the illnesses  
4 that are treated at Haymarket need to change as well.

5 People are not necessarily coming on public

6 transportation. Opioid addictions are not

7 necessarily always in those people living on the

8 street. Sometimes they're our cousin who worked in

9 construction or heavy equipment their whole life.

10 They need back surgery, insurance won't approve it,

11 so the doctor gives them another prescription.

12 Insurance will pay for that. They're not going to

13 get there on public transportation. They're going to

14 get taken there by their wife.

15 It's a different situation. It's

16 not what we think. We need to remember that these

17 individuals are not "them." They're our children and

18 our family members. They're our neighbors and our

19 friends. The last year-and-a-half has taught us a

20 ton. It's taught us that we're going to have

21 healthcare workers there with PTSD, possibly having

22 suicidal issues, over-medicating themselves to get

23 through that trauma. We have a number of things that

24 have changed in our world, and one of the things that

07:45

07:46

07:46

07:46

1 we have been taught is that what affects one of us,  
2 affects us all.

3 This has many up and down points.

4 There are many issues that have to be discussed. But  
5 my hope would be that what we would understand now -- 07:47:  
6 as our opinions about addictions and those issues  
7 have changed and grown, just like our opinions about  
8 Alzheimer's did from so many years ago, that we would  
9 begin to look at the people that will be served by  
10 Haymarket as our friends and our families as opposed 07:47:  
11 to those "others" and look at the possibility that  
12 those individuals, coming from DuPage County as they  
13 do, are not necessarily going to be in need of public  
14 transportation to get to the facility and the care  
15 that they need. 07:47:

16 I want to thank you very much for  
17 allowing me to make my comments. Have a nice  
18 evening.

19 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

20 MS. MC GOWEN: Good evening. My name is Paula 07:48:  
21 McGowen, and I'm a resident of Glen Ellyn. Although  
22 I don't live in your area, I welcomed Haymarket in  
23 mine. I've been an advocate for drug court for many,  
24 many years. In approximately 2002, I helped get

1 DuPage County drug court reinstated, because our  
2 former DuPage County State's Attorney had quietly  
3 closed new admissions to the drug court program  
4 because of an incident involving a participant who  
5 instead should have just been removed from the drug  
6 court program. When I found out from those in the  
7 drug court program that drug treatment centers had  
8 long waiting lists to get into short-term and  
9 long-term treatment facilities, I knew it was a  
10 matter of life and death for that to change.

07:48

07:48

11 Then, as now, there's a continuing  
12 need for available in-house drug treatment centers.  
13 Whether we like it or not, drug addiction has no  
14 class distinction. It's a matter of vulnerability  
15 and can strike anywhere, even in your area. Many who  
16 suffer from psychological and mental issues, such as  
17 schizophrenia, bipolar depression, anxiety disorders,  
18 self-medicate with illicit drugs. There's a proven  
19 need for this treatment center in DuPage County to  
20 rehabilitate these people so they can lead a  
21 productive life once again.

07:49

07:49

22 Haymarket has acquired an  
23 appropriate site in Itasca that would benefit only  
24 DuPage County residents afflicted with drug addiction

1 once it was allowed to operate. Haymarket has  
2 accommodated all the requirements set forth by the  
3 Itasca planning commission. Please allow Haymarket  
4 to save and change our lives. These lives are -- the  
5 lives that are saved may be one of your own. Thank  
6 you.

07:50

7 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

8 MR. ISHAUG: Good evening, everyone, and thank  
9 you for your time and for your public service and for  
10 your commitment to the residents of Itasca and  
11 greater DuPage. My name is Mark Ishaug, and I'm the  
12 CEO of thresholds, and we are Illinois' largest  
13 community based nonprofit mental health organization  
14 with offices and programs in Chicago and Cook County,  
15 Kankakee, McHenry, Lake County, and for the past four  
16 or five years in DuPage County. And our wonderful  
17 Dupage office in Westmont, not too far from here,  
18 about 18 miles from here, specializes in treating  
19 youth and young adults who are experiencing early  
20 onset or first episode of mental illness.

07:50

07:50

07:51

21 And for more than 60 years,  
22 Thresholds has provided home, health, and hope to  
23 those with mental health and substance use  
24 challenges. We assist people on their road to

1 recovery. We help them find and maintain housing,  
2 access mental health and substance abuse treatment  
3 programs, make sure they have the best primary care  
4 possible, and, of course, support them to find  
5 meaningful employment. Because we all know that a  
6 job and that the purpose and money that comes with a  
7 job is key to one's recovery.

07:51

07:51

07:52

07:52

8 And, frankly, there's no way we  
9 would be able to do our work if it weren't for  
10 Haymarket. For over 45 years, they have been our  
11 partner, our best partner, a stellar partner.  
12 Thresholds' clients, thousands upon thousands of  
13 others, wouldn't be as successful and as healthy as  
14 they are today without Haymarket's not-so-secret  
15 sauce, outreach, stabilization through detox,  
16 medication-assisted treatment, outpatient services,  
17 and specialized residential treatment. Simply put,  
18 Haymarket is the gold standard.

19 As you are well aware, and as my  
20 colleague back here just said, the last couple of  
21 years have been traumatizing for our communities, for  
22 our organizations, for our clients, for our friends,  
23 and our families. COVID has and continues to take a  
24 devastating toll, driving unprecedented rates of

1 anxiety, depression, death by suicide, overall lack  
2 of mental well-being, and, yes, substance use and  
3 overdose. The opioid epidemic has surged everywhere,  
4 including here in DuPage County, resulting in far too  
5 many deaths and far too many lives and families torn  
6 apart. And, of course, there's the much less  
7 discussed but widespread alcohol misuse, posing a  
8 great or even greater threat to the families and  
9 communities we must collectively address.

10 I simply cannot think of any better  
11 organization than Haymarket in all of the state of  
12 Illinois to meet this challenge and to meet this  
13 moment. They bring love and kindness and compassion  
14 and empathy to the work that they do. And combine  
15 that with cutting edge evidence-based practices and  
16 programs and state of the art, the very best,  
17 programs in prevention and treatment.

18 Folks, I have very few regrets in my  
19 life. I've made plenty of mistakes for sure and I've  
20 tried to atone for them and then not make them again,  
21 but I do have only one big regret and that's that I  
22 was not smart enough or determined enough or lucky  
23 enough to find Haymarket over 20 years ago when my  
24 little brother, Eric, needed help, when he needed me.

1 And Eric died at 29 all alone in an apartment out  
2 here in the burbs with a bottle of booze beside him,  
3 and I believe that -- in my whole heart and soul that  
4 had my family and I found Haymarket, Eric would be  
5 standing here talking to you today instead of me  
6 asking you to please allow Haymarket to move forward  
7 with this desperately needed treatment facility right  
8 here in Itasca. Eric would have been able to say  
9 that Haymarket saved and changed his life. He would  
10 have been able to tell you that recovery is possible.  
11 Recovery is likely, as thousands of my clients and  
12 thousands of Haymarket's clients tell us all the  
13 time. I'm lucky that my mom and dad are still with  
14 us today, and if they could turn back time and change  
15 just one thing and get one wish and prayer granted,  
16 you know what it would be.

07:54

07:54

07:55

07:55

17 And I pray that you find it in your  
18 hearts and your wise judgment to approve Haymarket's  
19 request to proceed with this life-saving treatment  
20 facility. They will absolutely be a vital asset to  
21 your community. I believe, and my 35 years of  
22 nonprofit leadership have confirmed this, that love  
23 and kindness and compassion fuel all positive change,  
24 and nobody brings more love, kindness, and compassion

1 to fuel positive change for individuals and families  
2 and communities than Haymarket. I've witnessed it.  
3 But I also know that love and kindness and compassion  
4 are necessary but not necessarily sufficient, and  
5 sometimes you have to add the very best prevention 07:55  
6 and treatment programs possible, because that is what  
7 helps people help themselves on their very rocky road  
8 to recovery.

9 So thank you all for the gift of  
10 your time tonight, and I hope that you will allow 07:56  
11 Haymarket to bring their gift of recovery to your  
12 friends and families and neighbors right here in  
13 Itasca and DuPage County. It will, without a doubt,  
14 strengthen your community. With gratitude, I thank  
15 you. 07:56

16 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

17 MR. VENETUCCI: Good evening. My name is  
18 David Venetucci. I'm a retired Elmhurst public  
19 school teacher and a Roselle resident. I am speaking  
20 tonight in support of Haymarket's zoning exemption 07:56  
21 request for its proposed mixed-use residential  
22 healthcare facility, and I promise to go right around  
23 five minutes.

24 We should all agree that making

1 decisions based on fears instead of facts never ends  
2 well. The Itasca Village Board obviously has an  
3 important opportunity to make a critical civic  
4 decision about the proposed Haymarket facility based  
5 on available facts, not irrational fears and  
6 manipulation of data and statistics.

7 Here's a fact: According to the  
8 DuPage County coroner's office, 496 county residents  
9 lost their lives to opioid-related overdoses between  
10 2016 and 2020. That's nearly 500 sons, daughters,  
11 dads, moms, granddaughters, grandsons, nieces,  
12 nephews, cousins, family friends, neighbors,  
13 acquaintances, and work colleagues lost to  
14 preventable drug overdoses here in DuPage County in  
15 just the past five years. These specs are completely  
16 unacceptable for a civilized society that purports to  
17 care about human life.

18 My son, Eric, another Eric, is  
19 included in these grim statistics. My Eric was only  
20 23 when he died of an accidental opioid overdose in  
21 November; November 6th, 2018. When I discovered his  
22 body in the bedroom of my Roselle home nearly three  
23 years ago, he was cold to the touch and, unlike  
24 during multiple previous overdoses that he had

1 experienced, this time, sadly, he was well beyond the  
2 point where medical interventions could have saved  
3 his life. My Eric was a talented, intelligent,  
4 inquisitive, creative, sensitive, and caring young  
5 man with so much life potential, but my son struggled 07:59:  
6 with significant substance abuse issues from his  
7 early teens before succumbing to addiction three  
8 years ago. Eric's tragic death came despite many  
9 interventions --

10 MAYOR PRUYN: We do have people watching 08:00:  
11 on-line so you have to stay by the microphone.

12 MR. VENETUCCI: Thank you. My son's death  
13 came despite interventions by many, many talented  
14 mental health professionals who attempted to support  
15 Eric with the best treatment options his mother and I 08:00:  
16 could make available, and Eric's mom is here tonight.

17 Facts, addiction is a serious brain  
18 disorder, not a personal weakness or character flaw.  
19 Fact, addiction is treatable with specialized medical  
20 and psychiatric care and high quality mental health 08:00:  
21 centers, such as the one Haymarket seeks to open here  
22 in Itasca.

23 So then what are the facts the  
24 Village planning commission has relied on to

1 unanimously deny Haymarket's zoning exemption  
2 request? Well, the main objection appears to be the  
3 concern that the Haymarket facility will negatively  
4 impact the Village's fire and EMS services, but it  
5 seems to me that concern, despite some interesting 08:01:  
6 comments earlier this evening about that issue, is  
7 completely refuted by the fact that Haymarket's  
8 operating proposal includes 24/7 private ambulance  
9 availability.

10 And speaking of ambulances, is it 08:01:  
11 true that Itasca currently just has one municipal  
12 ambulance? I believe that's true. And that that  
13 number is the same number as when the Holiday Inn in  
14 Itasca was in business. So my question, then, why  
15 was only one ambulance acceptable then to address the 08:01:  
16 emergency medical needs of 9,000-plus Itasca  
17 residents plus the additional EMS needs generated by  
18 the operation of the Holiday Inn but it's now not  
19 acceptable when Haymarket wants to open a mental  
20 health treatment center at the same location? 08:02:

21 And then in terms of security  
22 concerns, like any large hotel, Itasca's Holiday Inn  
23 when it was operating typically housed hundreds of  
24 out-of-the-area guests with minimal formal security.

1     However, the proposed Haymarket facility, on the  
2     other hand, would feature a cluster of strict 24/7  
3     internal and external security measures. So how is  
4     it realistic that Haymarket's proposed treatment  
5     center presents this community with a greater safety  
6     risk compared to the former Holiday Inn? I don't get  
7     that.

08:02

08:03

08:03

08:03

8                     So the Itasca Village Board has a  
9     responsibility -- no, actually, you have a civic  
10    obligation to override the planning commission's  
11    recommendation to not approve that zoning exemption  
12    request. This consequential public health decision,  
13    yes, must be based on facts, not emotions and social  
14    prejudice. Emotionally charged not-in-my-back-yard  
15    fears in the Itasca community are not fact based and  
16    should have nothing to do with the Village Board's  
17    upcoming decision to approve that zoning exemption.

18                     My son, Eric, spent time in many,  
19    many treatment centers during the decade he battled  
20    his substance abuse demons, and, while it's  
21    tragically too late for the new Haymarket facility to  
22    help my son, it's not too late to help others in this  
23    community who struggle with addiction. All of us  
24    know, probably know, someone whose family has been

1 personally impacted by addiction. "Those people," as  
2 they are unfortunately sometimes referred to, could  
3 be someone in your own family or your circle of  
4 friends who is struggling with a substance abuse  
5 problem and is in desperate need of this specialized 08:04  
6 care Haymarket can bring to this community.

7 So as a parent and DuPage County  
8 resident, I am hopeful the Itasca Village Board  
9 members here tonight demonstrate the personal wisdom  
10 and the civic courage -- and it will take courage -- 08:04  
11 to do the right thing here despite public and  
12 political pressure to make this very important  
13 decision based on fears, not facts. Thank you.

14 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

15 MS. BECKY: Hi, my name is Becky, and I'm a 08:04  
16 volunteer with the LTM Foundation. LTM was founded  
17 by Felicia Micelli, who is here with me tonight as  
18 well after she lost her son Louie to a drug overdose.

19 My daughter attended Lake Park High  
20 School, and the summer she graduated she got into a 08:05  
21 car accident, broke her hip, and was over-prescribed  
22 prescription painkillers. From there, she went on to  
23 develop a full-blown addiction to opioids. When she  
24 was finally ready to get help, the only treatment

1 center that was available to me was out in Rockford,  
2 and I drove round trip three hours there and back to  
3 go and support her and give her the love and support  
4 that she so desperately needed to get better. I  
5 would have driven 300 miles to get there if I had to.

08:05

6 I just want to say that in January,  
7 because of the great treatment that she got and the  
8 support from my family and people like Felicia who  
9 recognize addiction as the issue that it is, my  
10 daughter in January, God willing, will be celebrating  
11 her 10-year clean date.

08:06

12 I want to just mention what seems to  
13 be such as issue in terms of the use of your  
14 ambulance. My daughter and her friends who lived in  
15 Itasca, during the time that they were using, I can't  
16 tell you how many calls went out for fire and  
17 paramedic services because they were on the streets  
18 in such crisis. I do want to share, though, that  
19 when she went into treatment, she was in the program  
20 and then in a sober living home and away from my  
21 house for a year. And during that entire year, there  
22 were zero calls to EMS services. And you know why?  
23 Because people go to treatment to get help, to get  
24 better, because of the issue that she had and the use

08:06

08:06

1 of the EMS services when she was on the street  
2 struggling, as were many of her friends.

3 I also just want to mention, too,  
4 something that I've heard talked about time and time  
5 again, which is property taxes. And I'm a property 08:07:  
6 owner. I don't like high property taxes either. But  
7 I've heard from someone at one of the other events,  
8 well, why don't you put it in Winfield? Well, I was  
9 with a resident of Winfield just last week, and they  
10 talked about Central DuPage buying up so much space 08:07:  
11 in their town and now their property taxes are higher  
12 because there's not enough businesses. Central  
13 DuPage is buying up the town. So it made me wonder,  
14 so you don't want it in Itasca, you don't want it in  
15 Winfield. Where then? Where? And if there is an 08:07:  
16 issue with property taxes, let's not penalize the  
17 people that are trying to get help that they so  
18 desperately need. Let's look towards the people who  
19 set the property taxes and those we elect that can  
20 help with those issues, but please don't penalize the 08:08:  
21 people who are desperately in need of help.

22 And, lastly, I just want to talk  
23 about the stigma. I've heard so many hurtful things  
24 as I've sat through some of these hearings. "Not in

1 my town." "That's never going to happen to me." I  
2 didn't think it would happen to me, Felicia didn't  
3 think it would happen to her son, and this gentleman  
4 didn't think it would happen to his son either. But,  
5 sadly, it's happened to a lot of people in this 08:08  
6 country and it's going to continue happening. So,  
7 please, we need to get educated about the stigma.

8 My daughter now is a productive  
9 member of the community. She works full time. She  
10 goes into the schools, along with Felicia and other 08:08  
11 people here, to educate your children about addiction  
12 and how it got started. So, please, I beg you, let  
13 Haymarket put this facility here.

14 Felicia, is there anything you want  
15 to say? 08:08

16 MS. MICELLI: Hello, everyone. Thanks for  
17 listening to us. I feel like this forum today is  
18 different than the other ones, because I feel like  
19 we're really being listened to, so I really  
20 appreciate that. 08:09

21 What I want to say is that, um -- I  
22 say "um" too much. I noticed that -- that, you know,  
23 I saw the t-shirts that say "small town pride," but  
24 I'm begging for open-minds. Not small, large,

1 open-minded thoughts tonight to actually take in a  
2 bigger picture of helping people and offering Itasca  
3 as a host for that. And it will give your  
4 community -- believe me, it will enrich your  
5 community so much, give your children and families an 08:09  
6 opportunity to talk about addiction, which I do. I  
7 go to your schools in Itasca and talk about it. I  
8 would partner up with Haymarket and talk about  
9 addiction, to prevent it. But we have to do it  
10 collectively on the preventative end and on the 08:10  
11 treatment end and it is so necessary.

12 If you ever try to get anyone help  
13 in treatment and they want to go immediately and  
14 there's not a bed available, what they usually do is  
15 go out and use again thinking that they're -- they 08:10  
16 lost hope, there's no hope for them, and at those  
17 moments is when we lose a lot of people to those  
18 overdose deaths because they can't get into a  
19 treatment center right away. We do need those beds.

20 And I do understand that it's a 08:10  
21 complicated issue. I'm just asking you to open your  
22 hearts and have -- have compassion, and I know you  
23 do. I know you do. But it's just -- you know, when  
24 you have to think about the cost of Haymarket or

1 whatever cost it may be on your community and the  
2 cost of one life, like my son Louie, how do you weigh  
3 that? I don't know. Thank you for your time.

4 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

5 MS. ROSE: Good evening. I'm going to try not  
6 to fog my class glasses up when I speak. That would  
7 be so easy. Can we remove the mask while we speak or  
8 no? No? All right.

08:11:

08:11:

08:12:

08:12:

9 My name is Susan Rose, and I want to  
10 speak in favor of the Haymarket request. I'm  
11 currently the vice chair of the board of directors at  
12 the Haymarket center and a professor emeritus at the  
13 University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee, focusing my  
14 research on substance abuse and its impact on women  
15 and their children.

16 I'm also a resident of DuPage  
17 County. My husband and I have made our home in  
18 Elmhurst for the past 51 years. I've also had the  
19 privilege of serving as an alderman on the Elmhurst  
20 city council for five terms for 20 years, 16 of which  
21 I chaired the development planning and zoning  
22 committee. In 2013, Mayor Steve Morley appointed me  
23 to the Elmhurst zoning and planning commission, and  
24 in May of 2018, I was appointed chair of that

1 commission. I say all this just to say I'm familiar  
2 with how zoning requests for conditional uses,  
3 special uses, variances move through the process, and  
4 I'm very familiar with the respective roles of the  
5 zoning commission and a village board member.

08:12

6 The role of a zoning commissioner is  
7 to weigh any request against current zoning  
8 ordinances, focusing primarily on land-use issues  
9 rather than broader public policy. The role of a  
10 village board member is to focus on whether the  
11 commission evaluated the evidence correctly and to  
12 consider the role of good public policy in their  
13 decision. You are not required to rubber stamp  
14 decisions of the zoning commission, but, in fact, you  
15 are required to evaluate their work and the resulting  
16 decision.

08:13

08:13

17 The planned development by special  
18 use with exceptions is in order to permit a mixed-use  
19 residential and healthcare facility. This request  
20 must meet the standards for a planned development  
21 with special use and these have been addressed in the  
22 Haymarket application. In my opinion, no credible  
23 testimony has been given that would suggest detriment  
24 to the neighborhood or the Village. Just the

08:13

1 opposite, in fact. The testimony was given from many  
2 sources that this special use will help many  
3 residents in this village, it will help residents in  
4 this county, and it will be an asset to the area. It  
5 is a professional treatment center.

08:14

6 But let me speak to you as a  
7 neighbor. One of the standards in any variance or  
8 conditional use is that the proposed plan will not  
9 harm your neighbors. It's a cornerstone of zoning  
10 thinking. And we all heard testimony about property  
11 values or the enjoyment of a neighboring property,  
12 but I will say to you that the obverse is valid as  
13 well. Will this project enhance your neighbors'  
14 lives? I suggest to you that each town and village  
15 in this county is not only a separate entity but we  
16 are a neighborhood.

08:14

08:14

17 I was interested by the earlier  
18 comments about the number in Itasca versus other  
19 communities. I have to tell you that I lived for  
20 many years one block away from Elmhurst Hospital, and  
21 I suspect that Itasca residents, many of them use  
22 Elmhurst Hospital all the time. Did we say, gee, we  
23 don't need this because we -- it's only Elmhurst  
24 people should use that hospital? That's not how a

08:15

1 neighborhood works. And what I mean by that is none  
2 of us can fight the scourge of substance abuse alone.  
3 We all need each other to do that. This facility  
4 will not harm your neighborhoods, it will enhance all  
5 of our neighborhoods, and it will make our fight to 08:15  
6 keep our young people healthy even stronger. We  
7 residents, neighbors, and friends in DuPage County  
8 will be better able to do that with Haymarket's  
9 proposal.

10 I also understand that good people 08:16  
11 can disagree without personal attacks. That's the  
12 hallmark of the kind of democracy we all treasure and  
13 that we want to leave to our children. So I  
14 understand there's disagreement. I also understand  
15 that -- how difficult it is to make a decision in the 08:16  
16 face of strong opposition. I'm not you but I have  
17 sat in your seats many, many times and faced a crowd  
18 of people who were angry, upset, and disagreed with  
19 the petitioner. As an alderman, I cast a number of  
20 votes that were unpopular. Some were very unpopular. 08:16  
21 Some were unpopular with people in my home. So the  
22 popularity of casting a vote is not -- you understand  
23 better than most people in this room, I know you do,  
24 that you don't make your votes on that. But you also

1 know that the job of an alderman or a trustee is to  
2 make the best decision based on the facts. As well,  
3 you get to do one more thing that zoning commissions  
4 do not get to do. You also get to think about what  
5 is good public policy. What is the best policy. And 08:17  
6 I ask you tonight to make your decision considering  
7 the evidence presented in relation to the standards  
8 as well as what is good policy.

9 Van Warner, which some of you may  
10 have known, the former planning and zoning 08:17  
11 administrator in the city of Elmhurst, had a saying  
12 on the wall of his office that I saw all the time and  
13 really treasured. And that saying was, "the question  
14 should never be who is right but what is right."

15 So tonight I ask you to support what 08:18  
16 is right and to cast a positive vote for the proposed  
17 Haymarket request. Thank you very much.

18 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

19 MS. FRY: Good evening, Board. My name is  
20 Laura Fry. I was going to be one of those people 08:18  
21 that came with some heart-wrenching stories, but I  
22 want to start with some facts first.

23 I am not a resident of Itasca, which  
24 I think has sometimes discredited my testimony as I

1 have spoken many times on this. However, I'm a  
2 person in long-term recovery. I am one of "those  
3 people" who used drugs. Do I look like one? I also  
4 have a son in recovery from heroin use disorder. And  
5 I run a nonprofit, Lithraloly (phonetic), who has  
6 dedicated the past 13 years to advocating for people  
7 impacted by substance use disorder. We operate in  
8 DuPage, Cook, Lake, and McHenry counties.

08:19

08:19

08:19

08:20

9 I also spent 20 years in emergency  
10 medicine for Advocate Health Care before leaving to  
11 focus my efforts on the nonprofit. I have the  
12 benefit of knowing this issue from many different  
13 angles; as a user, as a mom, as a nurse, and as a  
14 community nonprofit leader. Some of the things that  
15 I've heard here tonight that I wanted to address that  
16 you might not know about, Narcan reverses opioid  
17 overdose. Only opioid overdose. One of the many  
18 substances that people can have a substance use  
19 disorder to.

20 And, I'm sorry, I have breathing  
21 problems, so to talk with a mask on is very  
22 difficult.

23 The numbers that are listed on the  
24 DuPage board of Narcan reversals, it's kind of a

1 misleading number, because that is only the reversals  
2 by first responders. I have worked very closely with  
3 the DuPage County Health Department so I know that as  
4 fact. That does not count the families that reverse  
5 overdoses. The friends that reverse overdoses. The  
6 nonprofit recovery homes that reverse overdoses.  
7 Only first responders. So that number can't really  
8 be credited as a really good look of what's happening  
9 in the county.

08:20

08:21

08:21

08:21

10 A lot of my job and my team's job is  
11 spent doing treatment navigation. We run a 24/7  
12 hotline where we take people to treatment. We do a  
13 full assessment, decide what treatment is best for  
14 them. That's when we can find it.

15 I want to introduce you to some  
16 friends. This is my friend Lisa's son Colin. A  
17 statistic of lack of resources. This is my friend  
18 Sharon's son Matt. Matt was a patient at Condell  
19 emergency room. They couldn't find him placement, so  
20 they sent him home with a stack of papers and said  
21 start calling tomorrow. He didn't live through the  
22 night. This is David. I got David into ATP in  
23 Waukegan for detox. They discharged him. I had a  
24 bed waiting for him three days later at Gateway,

1 because that was the soonest I could get him in  
2 there. He didn't make it.

3 This is Tommy. Tommy was very, very  
4 special to me. I got him in an outpatient program  
5 because that's all I could find. And last week he 08:22  
6 had a very successful week in an outpatient program  
7 that looked like it might work for him, but what he  
8 really needed was inpatient but I couldn't find a  
9 bed. This weekend I will be officiating his funeral.

10 We don't have enough space. Earlier 08:23  
11 in the week I paid for an Uber -- we talk about  
12 transportation. We drive people to treatment all the  
13 time, as do their families. And when we can't drive  
14 people, I sent someone from Waukegan to Haymarket in  
15 an Uber last Friday. We make due with what we have, 08:23  
16 because the most important thing is when people say  
17 I'm ready, I want to be done, they need to go now.  
18 Not tomorrow. Not next week. Now.

19 And I would like to end with a quote  
20 from a famous Jewish elder: If not you, then who? 08:24  
21 And if not now, when? How many more? I sincerely  
22 thank you for your time, and I don't envy your  
23 position. Thank you.

24 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

1 MR. LOTTA: Good evening, everyone. My name  
2 is Frank Lotta, and I live at 630 Forest Preserve  
3 Drive in Wood Dale, just about a mile from here. I'm  
4 a substance abuse counselor for a treatment center  
5 downtown, I'm a resident of DuPage, and, more 08:24  
6 importantly than that, I'm a recovering addict, just  
7 like Laura.

8 I was a little reluctant to come  
9 here tonight just because of the last meeting. There  
10 was a pretty unanimous and quick vote, and I was 08:25  
11 concerned that, you know, what I have to say is just  
12 going to fall on deaf ears. But this is something  
13 that I believe in very deeply. The amount of good  
14 and just the necessity of the Haymarket center that I  
15 felt I had to take advantage of a second chance to 08:25  
16 come in front of you guys one more time. So thank  
17 you for that.

18 Last time I already shared my story  
19 through active addiction and to recovery and the  
20 reasons why I believe Haymarket needs to be approved, 08:25  
21 so I'm not going to get into that today. What I'm  
22 here for today is for you to take into consideration  
23 the good that you have a unique opportunity to be a  
24 part of. I understand and respect each and

1 everyone's arguments for and against the Haymarket.  
2 Most of them are legitimate concerns. What I'm here  
3 asking for is instead of just fighting against this  
4 development, work with Dr. Lustig and the Haymarket  
5 to create a place that works both for the town and  
6 for them.

08:25

7                   You know, one of the arguments I  
8 keep hearing is Itasca's such a small town and  
9 Haymarket shouldn't be located here. And it's true,  
10 Itasca is a small town, but this small town can do so  
11 much good by allowing this development. You know,  
12 you guys have the potential to literally be a  
13 life-changing and life-saving town.

08:26

14                   Another argument that I do  
15 understand is the strain on EMS services. You know,  
16 there was a lot of concern about the town's one  
17 ambulance being tied up with the Haymarket when it  
18 might be needed somewhere else. Itasca still faces  
19 that same issue if there were two non-Haymarket  
20 related incidents. If two people were to have a  
21 heart attack right now, that ambulance would still be  
22 tied up and other arrangements would need to be made.  
23 When I hear that argument, I hear that -- and I might  
24 be wrong -- but I hear that one human life is more

08:26

08:26

1 valuable than the next just because of where they're  
2 at in life. You know, there's no concern -- where  
3 was I -- the real issue regarding that argument  
4 doesn't so much lie in the Haymarket, who has agreed  
5 to contract with other ambulances, but it lies in the 08:27  
6 fact that Itasca only has one ambulance.

7 Final argument that I'm going to  
8 bring up concerns the scope of the project, having  
9 250 beds in this establishment, and that's a big  
10 treatment center, you know. And, like I said, I'm 08:27  
11 here to push for compromise. Maybe 250 beds can be  
12 an end game and not a starting point? You know, so  
13 for those that are -- the suggestion is instead of  
14 fighting this, completely work together. Develop a  
15 solution that can work both for the Village and for 08:27  
16 Haymarket. Look to the greater good on this issue.  
17 Come up with a plan. Let the Haymarket demonstrate  
18 the good that they can do --

19 MS. CONIDI: You have to speak up a little  
20 bit. 08:28

21 MR. LOTTA: Oh, sorry. Look to the greater  
22 good on the issue. Come up with a plan where the  
23 Haymarket can demonstrate the good they do and their  
24 willingness to work with Itasca and surrounding

1 areas. I have listened to all the other forums over  
2 the last couple of years, and there's a lot of room  
3 for compromise in these arguments. Instead of being  
4 opponents, be teammates, because there's a lot of  
5 people that need you on their team. Thank you.

08:28

6 MR. DIESTAL: James Diestal, 107 West George  
7 Street, Itasca.

8 First off, I would like to say I  
9 take issue with a lot of people saying that Itasca  
10 residents are only using fear to make their decision.  
11 I would just like to point out my mom is ten years  
12 sober, so I take objection to that.

08:28

13 I would like to urge the Board to  
14 review all the inaccuracies submitted by Haymarket,  
15 the multiple reports and applications, as well as all  
16 the inconsistencies with the data. Haymarket tried  
17 to make these proceedings about treatment, but this  
18 is a zoning matter. Haymarket overlooked a great  
19 deal of common sense when they made this massive push  
20 for a DuPage facility; such as, not having a  
21 centralized DuPage location, a lack of public  
22 transportation, no accessibility for people being  
23 treated to get everyday necessities, and keeping  
24 triggers away, such as establishments within a half

08:29

08:29

1 block that have gambling and serve and sell alcohol.

2 Those are some massive oversights  
3 Haymarket made, but the largest one of all is scope.  
4 How did Haymarket possibly think a 240-bed regional  
5 drug treatment center, which would be one of the 08:29:  
6 largest in the nation, would work in a town of 9,000  
7 people? I believe the answer is giving no thought or  
8 concern about what Itasca could handle or a complete  
9 disregard for the same.

10 Then when things were not going 08:30:  
11 their way, they threatened a fair housing lawsuit in  
12 their closing remarks. The problem is Haymarket has  
13 not encountered any discrimination throughout these  
14 proceedings. The location resides in a business  
15 district. Haymarket has claimed time and time again 08:30:  
16 they are not residential in nature, and the scope and  
17 size of the proposed project would have immense  
18 consequences on a town that it's being presented in.  
19 Consequences that would be far above what Itasca  
20 could reasonably accommodate. 08:30:

21 I would look to people who try to  
22 find another facility of this size; something that  
23 would be a treatment center of this magnitude or  
24 maybe a casino a small town of this size. It doesn't

1 exist. There's no comparables out there because it  
2 just doesn't happen. It's too large of a project.

3 Based on all the testimony we have  
4 heard so far, I believe you have no choice but to  
5 vote down this project. I would like to thank 08:31  
6 everybody for their time. I know this has been a  
7 long process, and I do appreciate everybody being  
8 here.

9 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

10 MS. PETERSON: Hello, my name is Jamie 08:31  
11 Peterson, I'm a resident of Itasca, and I have some  
12 serious concerns with Haymarket placing this 200-plus  
13 bed facility in a town of 9 thousand residents. I'd  
14 mention the one ambulance, but I guess I'm not  
15 supposed to say that. I'm not sure. But I really 08:31  
16 took offense a little bit to what the gentleman said  
17 about me trying to say that my son's life is more  
18 important.

19 My husband, Ryan, spoke in the  
20 public comment section about how -- an incident 08:31  
21 involving our 14-month-old son having a complex  
22 seizure in our front yard while his twin brother sat  
23 and watched. I was out of town for work while my  
24 husband waited with two toddlers, one having a

1 full-blown seizure, for over 12 minutes while an  
2 ambulance didn't show up, although we lived two  
3 blocks from the fire department at that time, not in  
4 Itasca. Why did we have to wait so long? Because  
5 our town's ambulance was on another call and had to  
6 use mutual aid.

08:32

08:32

08:32

08:32

7 That was the longest 12 minutes of  
8 my husband's life. He thought he was losing his son  
9 while waiting for the ambulance and had no control  
10 over the situation. Luckily, my son got to the  
11 hospital in time and did fully recover. This  
12 experience has our family highly concerned about the  
13 potential increase in 911 calls that Haymarket could  
14 bring. In no way am I saying that his life is more  
15 important. I wouldn't wish this upon anyone. I  
16 wouldn't want anyone to experience a long wait time  
17 in a life or death emergency. I wouldn't wish it  
18 upon anyone.

19 I've listened to two years of  
20 presentations and have kept a very open mind. I  
21 agree that help is needed and there could be way more  
22 done to increase prevention, education, and addiction  
23 treatment. My concern is with the size, the immense  
24 size of this facility. From what I could find -- and

1 I've done a lot of looking -- it would be one of the  
2 largest facilities like this in the country in a town  
3 that is very small. As a resident of Itasca, I feel  
4 that this is just too big for our small town. I have  
5 an open mind for other solutions. I just don't think  
6 this is the right one. Thanks for your time.

08:33

7 MAYOR PRUYN: Thank you.

8 MS. LESIGN: Hi, I'm Gerry Lesign. I'm an  
9 Itasca resident. Before I speak to my point as an  
10 educational administrator, I do want to share what  
11 "high risk" means in schools. If a parent is  
12 considered homeless because they are treating a drug  
13 addiction in a facility, their child is considered  
14 high risk and actually gets more protection than the  
15 average student. It is not an insult, it's not a  
16 stigma, but it's actually how we identify and protect  
17 students who might need more support. But this  
18 protection does take quite a bit of local funding,  
19 which is why it was mentioned during testimony.

08:33

08:33

20 I agree that we need more treatment  
21 centers in DuPage County but do not agree with the  
22 size and scope of this proposed project. The  
23 Haymarket supporters that continue to judge us as  
24 being "nimsies" must not have been listening to the

08:34

1 last two years of testimony. We have never said that  
2 we can't have a treatment center in Itasca, just not  
3 one larger than anyone locally, simply for issues  
4 related to our funding.

5 We have heard Haymarket's testimony 08:34  
6 proposal and conflicting information, and I'm sure  
7 you've all been actively engaged so I don't need to  
8 go into any more detail. You have put the Plan  
9 Commission in charge of this task and they have voted  
10 no with an immense amount of information and data. 08:34  
11 As someone who actually lives in Itasca, I agree with  
12 our Plan Commission and do not support Haymarket's  
13 proposal. I'm ready for us to move forward and get  
14 back to the work we started two years ago to restore  
15 our downtown facilities. Thank you. 08:34

16 MAYOR PRUYN: Okay. That it, Mo?

17 MR. KHAN: That's it.

18 MAYOR PRUYN: Okay. So the public comment  
19 part of this has come to an end. We will reconvene  
20 then in special committee of the whole on October the 08:35  
21 26th where we will hear presentations by both the  
22 petitioner and the interested parties. So we will  
23 reconvene this committee on the 26th at 7:00 o'clock.

24 I do think we have some other

1 business to do this evening, if we want to go into an  
2 executive session before we adjourn for the night so  
3 if I could have --

4 TRUSTEE AIANI: I move to hold a closed  
5 session for the following purposes to discuss the  
6 matter of pending litigation against the Village and  
7 to discuss the employment of a specific person.

8 TRUSTEE GAVANES: Second.

9 MAYOR PRUYN: There's a motion and a second.

10 Roll call, please.

11 MS. CONIDI: Trustee Aiani.

12 TRUSTEE AIANI: For.

13 MS. CONIDI: Trustee Gavanese.

14 TRUSTEE GAVANES: For.

15 MS. CONIDI: Trustee Leahy.

16 TRUSTEE LEAHY: For.

17 MS. CONIDI: Trustee Linsner.

18 TRUSTEE LINSNER: For.

19 MS. CONIDI: Trustee Madaras.

20 TRUSTEE MADARAS: For.

21 MS. CONIDI: Trustee Powers.

22 TRUSTEE POWERS: For.

23 \* \* \* \* \*

24

08:35

08:35

08:36

1 STATE OF ILLINOIS )  
 ) SS.  
2 COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

3 I, Lynette J. Neal, CSR. No. 84-004363, RPR,  
4 do hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the  
5 proceedings had at the hearing of the above-entitled  
6 cause and that the foregoing Report of Proceedings,  
7 Pages 1 through 70, inclusive, is a true, correct,  
8 and complete transcript of my shorthand notes taken  
9 at the time and place aforesaid.

10 I further certify that I am not counsel for  
11 nor in any way related to any of the parties to this  
12 suit, nor am I in any way, directly or indirectly  
13 interested in the outcome thereof.

14 This certification applies only to those  
15 transcripts, original and copies, produced under my  
16 direction and control; and I assume no responsibility  
17 for the accuracy of any copies which are not so  
18 produced.

19 IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand  
20 this 21st day of October, 2021.

21   
22

23 Certified Shorthand Reporter  
24

<hr/> <b>1</b> <hr/>	<b>24</b> 27:21	<b>860</b> 5:9,15 21:13	63:22
<b>1</b> 5:12	<b>24/7</b> 45:8 46:2 58:11	<b>8th</b> 12:2	<b>accessible</b> 26:3,11,20
<b>10</b> 14:4,5,9 17:1 25:6 27:1	<b>240-bed</b> 64:4	<hr/> <b>9</b> <hr/>	<b>accessory</b> 5:14
<b>10-year</b> 48:11	<b>250</b> 62:9,11	<b>9</b> 65:13	<b>accident</b> 47:21
<b>100,000</b> 24:22,24 25:7, 11	<b>26th</b> 68:21,23	<b>9,000</b> 64:6	<b>accidental</b> 43:20
<b>107</b> 63:6	<b>29</b> 41:1	<b>9,000-plus</b> 45:16	<b>accommodate</b> 64:20
<b>11</b> 16:5,9,10,23 17:11	<hr/> <b>3</b> <hr/>	<b>90</b> 27:10	<b>accommodated</b> 38:2
<b>12</b> 17:24 66:1,7	<b>3,000</b> 31:21	<b>911</b> 66:13	<b>according</b> 18:10,17 30:5 43:7
<b>12th</b> 4:3	<b>30</b> 34:7	<b>922</b> 11:11	<b>account</b> 25:18
<b>13</b> 18:9 57:6	<b>300</b> 48:5	<hr/> <b>A</b> <hr/>	<b>accurate</b> 21:4
<b>14</b> 18:17 24:22,24 25:6	<b>35</b> 41:21	<b>abiding</b> 14:18	<b>accurately</b> 16:23
<b>14-month-old</b> 65:21	<b>355</b> 13:20,21	<b>ability</b> 24:9 29:17	<b>accusation</b> 16:1
<b>15</b> 18:22	<b>36</b> 8:11	<b>able</b> 9:12,24 29:18,20 39:9 41:8,10 55:8	<b>accusations</b> 12:6
<b>16</b> 19:15 52:20	<b>365</b> 23:7 27:22	<b>about</b> 12:10,24 13:2,23, 24 17:7 19:22 20:9 21:2 22:12 23:16,18 25:1,5 26:2,10,18,21 27:10 29:6,7,16,17,24 31:1,5 32:22 36:6,7 38:18 43:4, 17 45:6 49:4,10,23 50:7, 11 51:6,7,8,24 54:10,18 56:4 57:16 59:11 60:3 61:16 63:17 64:8 65:17, 20 66:12	<b>accuse</b> 12:4
<b>17</b> 20:4	<b>379</b> 20:15 21:23 22:17	<b>above</b> 25:9 64:19	<b>accused</b> 32:5
<b>18</b> 20:14 25:9 38:18	<hr/> <b>4</b> <hr/>	<b>absent</b> 4:13	<b>acquaintances</b> 43:13
<b>19</b> 22:2	<b>45</b> 25:12 27:5 39:10	<b>absolutely</b> 31:9 41:20	<b>acquired</b> 37:22
<b>19-014</b> 5:8	<b>4500</b> 24:3 26:5 27:18	<b>absorb</b> 19:5	<b>acquisition</b> 15:24
<hr/> <b>2</b> <hr/>	<b>496</b> 43:8	<b>absorbed</b> 22:6	<b>across</b> 24:13,21
<b>2.2</b> 15:8,9,11 34:5	<hr/> <b>5</b> <hr/>	<b>abuse</b> 8:8,9 9:2 39:2 44:6 46:20 47:4 52:14 55:2 60:4	<b>active</b> 8:19 60:19
<b>20</b> 12:8 14:4,5,9 23:15 28:2,7 40:23 52:20 57:9	<b>500</b> 43:10	<b>accept</b> 23:10	<b>actively</b> 68:7
<b>200-plus</b> 65:12	<b>51</b> 52:18	<b>acceptable</b> 34:12 45:15, 19	<b>actual</b> 31:12
<b>2002</b> 36:24	<hr/> <b>6</b> <hr/>	<b>accepted</b> 31:22	<b>actually</b> 10:17 17:6,13 20:12 22:10 25:9 26:13 27:15 28:11 31:24 32:4 46:9 51:1 67:14,16 68:11
<b>2013</b> 52:22	<b>60</b> 38:21	<b>access</b> 6:12 8:20 9:8,11, 14 39:2	<b>add</b> 23:3,5 42:5
<b>2014</b> 24:17,18	<b>630</b> 60:2	<b>accessibility</b> 26:2	<b>addict</b> 60:6
<b>2016</b> 43:10	<b>6th</b> 43:21		<b>addiction</b> 8:19 25:14 37:13,24 44:7,17,19 46:23 47:1,23 48:9 50:11 51:6,9 60:19 66:22 67:13
<b>2018</b> 43:21 52:24	<hr/> <b>7</b> <hr/>		<b>addictions</b> 35:6 36:6
<b>2019</b> 12:22 24:19	<b>7:00</b> 5:24 6:10 68:23		<b>Addison</b> 25:6
<b>2020</b> 43:10	<hr/> <b>8</b> <hr/>		<b>additional</b> 17:21 19:17 20:15 22:1,6,17 23:5 45:17
<b>2021</b> 4:3	<b>804</b> 7:13		<b>address</b> 29:13 32:4 40:9 45:15 57:15
<b>224</b> 33:14			
<b>23</b> 43:20			

<b>addressed</b> 53:21	<b>allotted</b> 11:15	<b>apply</b> 24:2 28:15	<b>attempt</b> 11:19
<b>adequate</b> 9:24	<b>allow</b> 11:20 12:7 38:3 41:6 42:10	<b>appointed</b> 52:22,24	<b>attempted</b> 20:4 44:14
<b>adjourn</b> 69:2	<b>allowed</b> 6:7 31:24 38:1	<b>appropriate</b> 34:8 37:23	<b>attended</b> 47:19
<b>administrator</b> 56:11 67:10	<b>allowing</b> 36:17 61:11	<b>approval</b> 5:12 14:14,19	<b>Attorney</b> 37:2
<b>admissions</b> 37:3	<b>alluded</b> 10:14	<b>approve</b> 35:10 41:18 46:11,17	<b>attributable</b> 21:12
<b>admit</b> 15:13	<b>almost</b> 7:20 34:7	<b>approved</b> 60:20	<b>audience</b> 4:19,20
<b>admitted</b> 12:22 13:1 18:4	<b>alone</b> 41:1 55:2	<b>approximately</b> 36:24	<b>audio</b> 25:21 29:10
<b>adult</b> 16:13	<b>along</b> 50:10	<b>area</b> 24:8 25:14 29:20 36:22 37:15 54:4	<b>availability</b> 27:2 45:9
<b>adults</b> 38:19	<b>already</b> 60:18	<b>areas</b> 25:4 63:1	<b>available</b> 30:2 37:12 43:5 44:16 48:1 51:14
<b>advantage</b> 60:15	<b>ALS</b> 13:7,11,13,16 18:3	<b>argued</b> 19:24	<b>average</b> 15:8 22:19,21 24:13,21 25:9,13 67:15
<b>advocate</b> 8:3,12 36:23 57:10	<b>Alzheimer's</b> 33:18 34:9, 20 36:8	<b>argument</b> 12:9 15:23 20:16 28:8,10 61:14,23 62:3,7	<b>averages</b> 24:2
<b>advocating</b> 57:6	<b>amazing</b> 7:22	<b>arguments</b> 6:14 12:1 61:1,7 63:3	<b>aware</b> 39:19
<b>affect</b> 10:21	<b>ambulance</b> 10:3 14:23 45:8,12,15 48:14 61:17, 21 62:6 65:14 66:2,5,9	<b>arise</b> 19:12	<b>away</b> 8:18 9:4 18:13 21:8,10 27:4,17 48:20 51:19 54:20 63:24
<b>affects</b> 36:1,2	<b>ambulances</b> 13:19 45:10 62:5	<b>Army</b> 13:21	
<b>afflicted</b> 37:24	<b>amended</b> 13:10	<b>arrangement</b> 14:15	<hr/> <b>B</b> <hr/>
<b>after</b> 5:16 23:20 32:14 47:18	<b>amendment</b> 12:21	<b>arrangements</b> 61:22	<b>B2</b> 5:14
<b>again</b> 17:4,17 23:16 30:3 37:21 40:20 49:5 51:15 64:15	<b>Among</b> 25:7	<b>art</b> 40:16	<b>back</b> 16:21 17:6 22:9 24:17 35:10 39:20 41:14 48:2 68:14
<b>against</b> 31:23 32:13 53:7 61:1,3 69:6	<b>amount</b> 60:13 68:10	<b>artfully</b> 24:5	<b>backlash</b> 32:23
<b>agencies</b> 8:12	<b>analyses</b> 21:16	<b>artificial</b> 20:23	<b>based</b> 11:17 12:6 23:17 24:19 26:6,7 34:14 38:13 43:1,4 46:13,15 47:13 56:2 65:3
<b>agenda</b> 4:2,21	<b>analysis</b> 15:22 16:4 22:11	<b>asserted</b> 19:22 20:2	<b>basis</b> 9:23 19:21 22:8
<b>ago</b> 26:22 34:6 36:8 40:23 43:23 44:8 68:14	<b>angles</b> 57:13	<b>asserting</b> 25:18	<b>battled</b> 46:19
<b>agree</b> 14:16 42:24 66:21 67:20,21 68:11	<b>angry</b> 55:18	<b>assertion</b> 19:21 20:1	<b>bear</b> 28:4
<b>agreed</b> 17:3 62:4	<b>annually</b> 24:4	<b>assessed</b> 28:11	<b>bears</b> 19:2
<b>agreement</b> 18:11	<b>another</b> 6:1 22:22 35:11 43:18 61:14 64:22 66:5	<b>assessment</b> 19:12 58:13	<b>Becky</b> 47:15
<b>Aiani</b> 4:5,6 69:4,11,12	<b>answers</b> 26:18	<b>asset</b> 41:20 54:4	<b>bed</b> 9:4 51:14 58:24 59:9 65:13
<b>aid</b> 18:19 66:6	<b>anxiety</b> 37:17 40:1	<b>assist</b> 38:24	<b>bedroom</b> 43:22
<b>alcohol</b> 40:7 64:1	<b>anymore</b> 13:20	<b>assistance</b> 21:10	<b>beds</b> 16:15 27:2 51:19 62:9,11
<b>alderman</b> 52:19 55:19 56:1	<b>apartment</b> 41:1	<b>Associates</b> 29:24	<b>before</b> 5:2 6:4,12 23:17 29:2 44:7 57:10 67:9 69:2
<b>alleged</b> 20:5	<b>appeared</b> 19:18	<b>assume</b> 24:10	
<b>Allegiance</b> 4:18	<b>appears</b> 45:2	<b>atone</b> 40:20	
	<b>application</b> 53:22	<b>ATP</b> 58:22	
	<b>applications</b> 63:15	<b>attack</b> 9:20 61:21	
		<b>attacks</b> 55:11	

<b>beg</b> 50:12	<b>brings</b> 41:24	<b>caring</b> 44:4	<b>child</b> 67:13
<b>began</b> 26:10	<b>broader</b> 53:9	<b>cars</b> 8:20	<b>children</b> 11:1 31:2,17 34:23 35:17 50:11 51:5 52:15 55:13
<b>begging</b> 50:24	<b>broke</b> 47:21	<b>Case</b> 5:8	
<b>begin</b> 7:4,7 36:9	<b>brother</b> 40:24 65:22	<b>casino</b> 64:24	<b>choice</b> 65:4
<b>behalf</b> 8:1	<b>build</b> 34:19	<b>cast</b> 55:19 56:16	<b>circle</b> 27:3 47:3
<b>behavioral</b> 9:2	<b>bulldoze</b> 10:8	<b>casting</b> 55:22	<b>cited</b> 14:11 15:11 16:4 18:22
<b>believed</b> 19:19	<b>bullied</b> 10:9	<b>celebrating</b> 48:10	<b>city</b> 52:20 56:11
<b>believes</b> 19:24	<b>burbs</b> 41:2	<b>center</b> 8:11 26:19 37:19 45:20 46:5 48:1 51:19 52:12 54:5 60:4,14 62:10 64:5,23 68:2	<b>civic</b> 43:3 46:9 47:10
<b>benefit</b> 37:23 57:12	<b>burden</b> 28:4	<b>centers</b> 37:7,12 44:21 46:19 67:21	<b>civilized</b> 43:16
<b>benefits</b> 28:7	<b>bus</b> 9:6 27:7,24	<b>Central</b> 49:10,12	<b>claim</b> 9:10 10:1 18:23 26:3 32:6
<b>big</b> 16:11 22:20 40:21 62:9 67:4	<b>business</b> 5:14 26:15 34:14 45:14 64:14 69:1	<b>centralized</b> 63:21	<b>claimed</b> 13:15 22:13 64:15
<b>bigger</b> 51:2	<b>businesses</b> 49:12	<b>CEO</b> 33:15 38:12	<b>claiming</b> 31:22
<b>Bingo</b> 33:16	<b>Butterfield</b> 13:21	<b>certainly</b> 21:23	<b>claims</b> 12:24 13:2,23
<b>bipolar</b> 37:17	<b>buying</b> 49:10,13	<b>chair</b> 34:10 52:11,24	<b>class</b> 5:12 37:14 52:6
<b>bit</b> 33:24 62:20 65:16 67:18	<hr/> <b>C</b> <hr/>	<b>chaired</b> 52:21	<b>clean</b> 48:11
<b>block</b> 54:20 64:1	<b>CAD</b> 17:8	<b>challenge</b> 14:19 40:12	<b>clear</b> 16:13 17:7 30:23
<b>blocks</b> 21:10 66:3	<b>calculations</b> 22:1	<b>challenged</b> 17:17	<b>clearly</b> 21:19
<b>Bloomington</b> 25:6 27:9,11,13,14,16	<b>call</b> 4:1,4 7:9 18:14 20:19 21:13,14,22 22:14,19,22, 24 23:1,4,5 66:5 69:10	<b>challenges</b> 38:24	<b>clerk</b> 4:3
<b>BLS</b> 14:8	<b>called</b> 5:6 12:5 20:7	<b>challenging</b> 17:15	<b>clients</b> 23:9 26:4,5,16, 19,20 27:18,19 28:6 39:12,22 41:11,12
<b>board</b> 5:5,18,20,21 6:2, 7,10 11:5,10 12:13 14:19 20:11 28:20 31:1 32:11 43:2 46:8 47:8 52:11 53:5,10 56:19 57:24 63:13	<b>calling</b> 58:21	<b>chance</b> 22:15 60:15	<b>close</b> 25:20 26:19
<b>Board's</b> 19:23 46:16	<b>calls</b> 10:4,5 13:7,14 14:3,8 15:8 17:23 18:1,3, 9,16,18 20:15 21:15 22:13,16,17,20,23 23:2 34:5 48:16,22 66:13	<b>chances</b> 22:22 23:2,4	<b>closed</b> 37:3 69:4
<b>body</b> 5:19 43:22	<b>campaigns</b> 10:10	<b>change</b> 35:4 37:10 38:4 41:14,23 42:1	<b>closely</b> 58:2
<b>booze</b> 41:2	<b>campus</b> 9:3	<b>changed</b> 17:9 34:24 35:24 36:7 41:9	<b>closer</b> 27:4
<b>bottle</b> 41:2	<b>cap</b> 20:24	<b>channel</b> 6:23	<b>closest</b> 8:23
<b>bought</b> 32:15	<b>capabilities</b> 9:21	<b>character</b> 44:18	<b>closing</b> 12:1,9 14:11 15:6,23 20:16 28:8,10 64:12
<b>brain</b> 44:17	<b>capacity</b> 18:22,24 19:5, 11 22:3 23:23 26:7	<b>characterized</b> 16:23 20:17	<b>Clover</b> 11:11
<b>bravely</b> 28:20	<b>car</b> 47:21	<b>charge</b> 68:9	<b>cluster</b> 46:2
<b>breadth</b> 16:17	<b>care</b> 29:24 33:19 34:8,9 36:14 39:3 43:17 44:20 47:6 57:10	<b>charged</b> 46:14	<b>cold</b> 43:23
<b>breathing</b> 57:20	<b>caregivers</b> 29:8 33:20	<b>check</b> 26:21	<b>Colin</b> 58:16
<b>bring</b> 32:20 40:13 42:11 47:6 62:8 66:14		<b>checked</b> 18:12	<b>collar</b> 26:6
<b>bringing</b> 18:21		<b>chemical</b> 34:11	<b>collated</b> 15:21
		<b>Chicago</b> 27:3,5,17 38:14	<b>colleague</b> 39:20

<b>colleagues</b> 43:13	<b>complete</b> 5:22 6:1 64:8	<b>context</b> 19:7	<b>creative</b> 44:4
<b>collectively</b> 40:9 51:10	<b>completely</b> 43:15 45:7 62:14	<b>continue</b> 50:6 67:23	<b>credible</b> 18:6 53:22
<b>Colleen</b> 33:14	<b>complex</b> 65:21	<b>continued</b> 5:24 12:9 13:6	<b>credited</b> 58:8
<b>collide</b> 22:24	<b>complicated</b> 51:21	<b>continues</b> 39:23	<b>crisis</b> 8:4,16 9:1 10:17 21:7 27:23 48:18
<b>combine</b> 25:10 40:14	<b>compromise</b> 62:11 63:3	<b>continuing</b> 37:11	<b>criteria</b> 16:13
<b>comment</b> 5:7,22,23 6:1, 7 11:14 15:20 65:20 68:18	<b>comps</b> 17:11	<b>contract</b> 10:13 12:18, 19,21,23,24 13:2,3,11, 17,21 14:6,7,10,12,22 62:5	<b>critical</b> 12:14 43:3
<b>comments</b> 6:10,17 7:4 11:9 28:23 36:17 45:6 54:18	<b>concern</b> 45:3,5 61:16 62:2 64:8 66:23	<b>contracted</b> 13:9	<b>crowd</b> 55:17
<b>commission</b> 5:8,17,18 6:13,15 15:1 30:3 38:3 44:24 52:23 53:1,5,11,14 68:9,12	<b>concerned</b> 21:1 60:11 66:12	<b>control</b> 66:9	<b>current</b> 13:3 53:7
<b>commission's</b> 28:22 46:10	<b>concerns</b> 30:11 45:22 61:2 62:8 65:12	<b>convenience</b> 29:18	<b>cutting</b> 40:15
<b>commissioner</b> 53:6	<b>concurrency</b> 17:22 18:8 22:10,11 23:3,6	<b>Cook</b> 38:14 57:8	<hr/> <b>D</b> <hr/>
<b>commissions</b> 56:3	<b>concurrent</b> 17:23 18:1, 9,15,18 22:14	<b>cornerstone</b> 54:9	<b>dad</b> 41:13
<b>commitment</b> 38:10	<b>Condell</b> 58:18	<b>coroner's</b> 43:8	<b>dads</b> 43:11
<b>commitments</b> 13:13	<b>conditional</b> 53:2 54:8	<b>correctly</b> 53:11	<b>daily</b> 9:23
<b>committee</b> 4:2 5:2,6 7:1 52:22 68:20,23	<b>conditions</b> 14:18	<b>cost</b> 31:1 51:24 52:1,2	<b>Dale</b> 18:11,12 25:9 60:3
<b>common</b> 63:19	<b>confidence</b> 28:13	<b>council</b> 52:20	<b>dangerous</b> 34:23
<b>communities</b> 39:21 40:9 42:2 54:19	<b>confirm</b> 10:12	<b>counsel</b> 15:11 20:13	<b>darkened</b> 31:12
<b>community</b> 5:3,14 7:1, 24 8:15 38:13 41:21 42:14 46:5,15,23 47:6 50:9 51:4,5 52:1 57:14	<b>confirmed</b> 41:22	<b>counselor</b> 60:4	<b>data</b> 16:18 17:8 23:22,24 24:18 25:18 43:6 63:16 68:10
<b>comp</b> 17:4,9,14,19	<b>conflicting</b> 68:6	<b>count</b> 58:4	<b>date</b> 48:11
<b>companies</b> 34:19	<b>confusing</b> 29:3	<b>counties</b> 26:6 57:8	<b>dated</b> 12:19
<b>company</b> 33:15	<b>CONIDI</b> 4:5,7,9,11,13 62:19 69:11,13,15,17,19, 21	<b>country</b> 50:6 67:2	<b>daughter</b> 47:19 48:10, 14 50:8
<b>comparable</b> 16:5,10 17:17	<b>consequences</b> 64:18, 19	<b>county</b> 8:4,11,18,22 9:7, 9 10:17 24:20,21 25:12 36:12 37:1,2,19,24 38:14,15,16 40:4 42:13 43:8,14 47:7 52:17 54:4, 15 55:7 58:3,9 67:21	<b>daughters</b> 43:10
<b>comparables</b> 16:7,9,11 17:1 65:1	<b>consequential</b> 46:12	<b>couple</b> 39:20 63:2	<b>David</b> 42:18 58:22
<b>compare</b> 24:23	<b>consideration</b> 60:22	<b>courage</b> 47:10	<b>day</b> 15:8 17:8 22:13,19, 21 23:7 27:22 34:5
<b>compared</b> 24:24 25:5 46:6	<b>considered</b> 17:19 34:12 67:12,13	<b>court</b> 7:5 36:23 37:1,3,6, 7	<b>days</b> 23:7 27:22 58:24
<b>compassion</b> 40:13 41:23,24 42:3 51:22	<b>consisted</b> 31:18	<b>cousin</b> 35:8	<b>deaf</b> 60:12
	<b>consistent</b> 34:8	<b>cousins</b> 43:12	<b>deal</b> 18:7 22:20 63:19
	<b>consistently</b> 31:1	<b>covered</b> 28:10	<b>dealing</b> 8:7 35:2
	<b>construction</b> 35:9	<b>COVID</b> 39:23	<b>death</b> 37:10 40:1 44:8,12 66:17
	<b>constructive</b> 15:2	<b>create</b> 61:5	<b>deaths</b> 40:5 51:18
		<b>creates</b> 22:22	<b>decade</b> 46:19
			<b>decide</b> 16:22 58:13
			<b>decided</b> 34:16

<b>decision</b> 5:20 10:24 11:17 12:14 33:6 43:4 46:12,17 47:13 53:13,16 55:15 56:2,6 63:10	<b>died</b> 41:1 43:20	<b>Dominik</b> 16:5,12,22 17:7	<b>effect</b> 10:5
<b>decisions</b> 10:21,22 33:7 43:1 53:14	<b>Diestal</b> 63:6	<b>dot</b> 19:11	<b>efforts</b> 14:7,9,10 57:11
<b>deck</b> 14:11	<b>difference</b> 8:15 16:11	<b>doubt</b> 42:13	<b>elder</b> 59:20
<b>dedicated</b> 57:6	<b>difficult</b> 12:3 21:4 55:15 57:22	<b>down</b> 14:17,21 28:18 36:3 65:5	<b>elect</b> 49:19
<b>deeply</b> 60:13	<b>direct</b> 26:18	<b>downtown</b> 60:5 68:15	<b>elected</b> 10:19
<b>delayed</b> 18:15	<b>directly</b> 12:11 20:7	<b>dramatically</b> 34:24	<b>elicit</b> 37:18
<b>deliberating</b> 6:4	<b>directors</b> 32:11 52:11	<b>draw</b> 9:16	<b>Elite</b> 10:12 12:18 13:7,9, 10,11,13,15,19,22,24 14:15
<b>demand</b> 15:5 18:24 19:5 22:6 23:14 24:12	<b>disagree</b> 55:11	<b>drive</b> 59:12,13 60:3	<b>Elite's</b> 14:3
<b>dementia</b> 33:18	<b>disagreed</b> 55:18	<b>driven</b> 29:15 48:5	<b>Ellyn</b> 36:21
<b>democracy</b> 55:12	<b>disagreement</b> 55:14	<b>driving</b> 8:21 29:7 39:24	<b>Elmhurst</b> 8:22 42:18 52:18,19,23 54:20,22,23 56:11
<b>demons</b> 46:20	<b>disagrees</b> 23:19	<b>drove</b> 48:2	<b>else's</b> 8:9
<b>demonstrate</b> 47:9 62:17,23	<b>discharged</b> 58:23	<b>drug</b> 36:23 37:1,3,5,7, 12,13,24 43:14 47:18 64:5 67:12	<b>emergency</b> 10:3 14:8 19:17 45:16 57:9 58:19 66:17
<b>deny</b> 5:18 45:1	<b>discovered</b> 43:21	<b>drugging</b> 34:9	<b>emeritus</b> 52:12
<b>department</b> 58:3 66:3	<b>discredited</b> 56:24	<b>drugs</b> 37:18 57:3	<b>emotional</b> 10:7
<b>dependent</b> 14:14	<b>discrepancy</b> 15:16,22	<b>due</b> 32:10 59:15	<b>Emotionally</b> 46:14
<b>deploys</b> 18:7	<b>discrimination</b> 64:13	<b>Dupage</b> 5:9 8:4,11,18,22 9:7,9 10:17 16:8 19:6 24:7,8,13,15 25:4,8,9 26:6,11,24 36:12 37:1,2, 19,24 38:11,16,17 40:4 42:13 43:8,14 47:7 49:10,13 52:16 55:7 57:8,24 58:3 60:5 63:20, 21 67:21	<b>emotions</b> 46:13
<b>depression</b> 37:17 40:1	<b>discuss</b> 69:5,7		<b>empathy</b> 40:14
<b>designate</b> 6:19	<b>discussed</b> 15:18 36:4 40:7	<b>E</b>	<b>employee</b> 17:16
<b>desperate</b> 47:5	<b>discussion</b> 19:2 22:3 23:11		<b>employment</b> 39:5 69:7
<b>desperately</b> 9:10 41:7 48:4 49:18,21	<b>disease</b> 33:18		<b>EMS</b> 7:18 9:19,21,24 15:6,7 16:6 18:22 22:3, 12,19 28:5 34:3 45:4,17 48:22 49:1 61:15
<b>detail</b> 68:8	<b>dishonest</b> 19:2 20:24		<b>encountered</b> 64:13
<b>determination</b> 28:15	<b>dismissed</b> 21:8		<b>encourage</b> 16:21 17:5, 18 20:11
<b>determine</b> 17:18 20:5, 10,12	<b>disorder</b> 44:18 57:4,7, 19		<b>encouraged</b> 6:16,22
<b>determined</b> 40:22	<b>disorders</b> 37:17		<b>end</b> 8:15 26:22 51:10,11 59:19 62:12 68:19
<b>detox</b> 39:15 58:23	<b>disproportionately</b> 25:16		<b>ended</b> 33:10
<b>detriment</b> 7:15 53:23	<b>disregard</b> 64:9		<b>ends</b> 43:1
<b>devastating</b> 39:24	<b>dissolves</b> 14:22		<b>enforcement</b> 8:12
<b>develop</b> 47:23 62:14	<b>distinction</b> 37:14		<b>engaged</b> 68:7
<b>developed</b> 7:21	<b>distributed</b> 24:20		<b>enhance</b> 54:13 55:4
<b>development</b> 5:3,11 7:1 52:21 53:17,20 61:4,11	<b>district</b> 5:15 18:6 19:4, 10 31:2 64:15		
<b>dictate</b> 18:7	<b>districts</b> 7:23		
	<b>doctor</b> 35:11		
	<b>document</b> 31:20		

<b>enjoyment</b> 54:11	<b>evident</b> 31:11	14,24 27:18 28:4 36:14	<b>finally</b> 47:24
<b>enough</b> 30:4 40:22,23 49:12 59:10	<b>exactly</b> 26:13 34:4	41:7,20 42:22 43:4 45:3	<b>find</b> 25:2 28:3 39:1,4 40:23 41:17 58:14,19 59:5,8 64:22 66:24
<b>enrich</b> 51:4	<b>exaggerated</b> 22:7	46:1,21 50:13 53:19 55:3	<b>findings</b> 6:14
<b>entire</b> 6:12 31:18 34:13 48:21	<b>exaggeration</b> 14:12	63:20 64:22 65:13 66:24	<b>Finn</b> 7:12
<b>entity</b> 54:15	<b>examined</b> 32:1	67:13	<b>fire</b> 15:17,18 18:5 19:4, 10 45:4 48:16 66:3
<b>envy</b> 33:5 59:22	<b>example</b> 22:18 30:24	<b>fact</b> 9:1,22 11:3 34:14 43:7 44:19 45:7 46:15 53:14 54:1 58:4 62:6	<b>Fitch</b> 19:3,8
<b>epidemic</b> 40:3	<b>examples</b> 12:8,11	<b>factors</b> 23:24	<b>flaw</b> 44:18
<b>episode</b> 38:20	<b>exceptions</b> 5:11 53:18	<b>facts</b> 9:16 11:6,17 12:10, 15 28:18 30:6,7,9,11	<b>floor</b> 4:24
<b>equal</b> 8:13	<b>executive</b> 69:2	31:12 33:8 43:1,5 44:17, 23 46:13 47:13 56:2,22	<b>focus</b> 7:17 53:10 57:11
<b>equalized</b> 28:10	<b>exemption</b> 42:20 45:1 46:11,17	<b>factual</b> 19:21	<b>focusing</b> 52:13 53:8
<b>equipment</b> 13:23 18:2,7 19:17 35:9	<b>exhibits</b> 6:14 24:11	<b>fair</b> 8:13 64:11	<b>fog</b> 52:6
<b>equipped</b> 13:7	<b>exist</b> 13:20 65:1	<b>fall</b> 60:12	<b>Folks</b> 40:18
<b>ER</b> 9:5	<b>existed</b> 26:13	<b>falsely</b> 13:15 32:2	<b>followers</b> 33:3
<b>Eric</b> 40:24 41:1,4,8 43:18,19 44:3,15 46:18	<b>existing</b> 28:5	<b>familial</b> 33:21	<b>following</b> 69:5
<b>Eric's</b> 44:8,16	<b>exists</b> 10:2	<b>familiar</b> 53:1,4	<b>follows</b> 6:6
<b>establishes</b> 13:12	<b>expect</b> 23:8	<b>families</b> 36:10 39:23 40:5,8 42:1,12 51:5 58:4 59:13	<b>force</b> 10:14 21:20
<b>establishment</b> 62:9	<b>expecting</b> 27:23	<b>family</b> 17:12 35:18 41:4 43:12 46:24 47:3 48:8 66:12	<b>Forest</b> 60:2
<b>establishments</b> 63:24	<b>experience</b> 66:12,16	<b>farther</b> 27:17	<b>forever</b> 32:15,16
<b>estimate</b> 20:18,20 26:8	<b>experienced</b> 44:1	<b>fastest</b> 27:6,12	<b>forget</b> 11:3
<b>estimates</b> 21:2 24:6	<b>experiencing</b> 38:19	<b>famous</b> 59:20	<b>formal</b> 45:24
<b>ethically</b> 14:20	<b>expert</b> 15:22 16:4 17:3 18:23 20:9 22:5,10 23:22,23 33:17	<b>favor</b> 52:10	<b>format</b> 19:8
<b>evaluate</b> 13:1 53:15	<b>experts</b> 16:15 20:22 21:3	<b>fear</b> 63:10	<b>former</b> 17:15 21:9,11 37:2 46:6 56:10
<b>evaluated</b> 53:11	<b>external</b> 46:3	<b>fears</b> 43:1,5 46:15 47:13	<b>forthright</b> 32:7
<b>evening</b> 5:4,5 33:13,23 36:18,20 38:8 42:17 45:6 52:5 56:19 60:1 69:1	<b>extra</b> 10:4,5	<b>feature</b> 46:2	<b>forum</b> 50:17
<b>evenly</b> 24:20	<b>eyes</b> 11:5	<b>feel</b> 7:17 21:2 33:5 50:17,18 67:3	<b>forums</b> 63:1
<b>events</b> 49:7		<b>feet</b> 9:5	<b>forward</b> 22:10 41:6 68:13
<b>everyday</b> 63:23	<b>F</b>	<b>Felicia</b> 47:17 48:8 50:2, 10,14	<b>found</b> 37:6 41:4
<b>everyone's</b> 61:1	<b>face</b> 55:16	<b>felt</b> 60:15	<b>Foundation</b> 47:16
<b>everywhere</b> 40:3	<b>faced</b> 55:17	<b>fight</b> 55:2,5	<b>founded</b> 47:16
<b>evidence</b> 12:16,20,22 13:3 15:13 24:12,14,16 26:1 28:17 53:11 56:7	<b>faces</b> 61:18	<b>fighting</b> 61:3 62:14	<b>frame</b> 20:23
<b>evidence-based</b> 40:15	<b>facilities</b> 10:11 16:19,24 34:20 37:9 67:2 68:15	<b>figure</b> 15:1 24:1	<b>Frank</b> 60:2
	<b>facility</b> 5:13 7:16 9:11, 12,17,23 10:15 14:22 15:6 16:16 17:3 19:1 21:1 24:3 25:19 26:2,6,	<b>final</b> 5:20 62:7	<b>frankly</b> 39:8
			<b>frequently</b> 18:14

<b>Friday</b> 59:15	<b>God</b> 48:10	<b>handle</b> 13:7 18:2,24 64:8	<b>hearings</b> 5:17 14:15 26:10 49:24
<b>friend</b> 58:16,17	<b>gold</b> 39:18	<b>happen</b> 31:14 32:24 50:1,2,3,4 65:2	<b>hearsay</b> 13:5 14:1
<b>friends</b> 29:15,23 35:19 36:10 39:22 42:12 43:12 47:4 48:14 49:2 55:7 58:5,16	<b>good</b> 5:5 31:16 33:13 36:20 38:8 42:17 52:5 53:12 55:10 56:5,8,19 58:8 60:1,13,23 61:11 62:16,18,22,23	<b>happened</b> 50:5	<b>heart</b> 41:3 61:21
<b>friendships</b> 7:22	<b>Google</b> 26:23	<b>happening</b> 22:15 31:13 32:9 50:6 58:8	<b>heart-wrenching</b> 56:21
<b>front</b> 60:16 65:22	<b>government</b> 11:4	<b>hard</b> 29:2 33:4	<b>hearts</b> 41:18 51:22
<b>Fry</b> 56:19,20	<b>GOWEN</b> 36:20	<b>harm</b> 54:9 55:4	<b>heavily</b> 12:19
<b>fuel</b> 41:23 42:1	<b>graduated</b> 47:20	<b>Haymarket</b> 4:22,24 5:9 7:15 9:7,9,13,15,22 10:2, 7,18 12:2,18,23,24 13:6, 10,12,14,16,18,23 14:2, 8,11,13,18 15:2,7,21,23 16:4,6 17:2,22 18:3,10, 17,21,22 19:6,13,15,18, 19,20,23 20:2,4,13,16,23 21:6,12,17 22:2,13,18 23:10,12 24:5 25:17 26:4,9,14,17 27:21,23 28:6 30:1,6,9,15,20 31:23 32:14 35:4 36:10, 22 37:22 38:1,3 39:10,18 40:11,23 41:4,6,9 42:2, 11 43:4 44:21 45:3,19 46:1,21 47:6 50:13 51:8, 24 52:10,12 53:22 56:17 59:14 60:14,20 61:1,4,9, 17 62:4,16,17,23 63:14, 16,18 64:3,4,12,15 65:12 66:13 67:23	<b>heavy</b> 35:9
<b>fulfilled</b> 30:12,17	<b>grandchildren</b> 11:2	<b>Haymarket also</b> 14:16	<b>held</b> 15:3
<b>full</b> 50:9 58:13	<b>granddaughters</b> 43:11	<b>Haymarket's</b> 11:7 12:9 16:15 24:11 26:1 31:8 39:14 41:12,18 42:20 45:1,7 46:4 55:8 68:5,12	<b>helped</b> 36:24
<b>full-blown</b> 47:23 66:1	<b>grandsons</b> 43:11	<b>health</b> 9:3 10:3 38:13, 22,23 39:2 44:14,20 45:20 46:12 57:10 58:3	<b>helping</b> 51:2
<b>fully</b> 66:11	<b>granted</b> 11:23 41:15	<b>healthcare</b> 5:13 35:21 42:22 53:19	<b>helps</b> 42:7
<b>funding</b> 67:18 68:4	<b>gratitude</b> 42:14	<b>healthy</b> 39:13 55:6	<b>heroin</b> 57:4
<b>funeral</b> 59:9	<b>great</b> 40:8 48:7 63:18	<b>hear</b> 5:7 6:2,10 23:18 32:10 61:23,24 68:21	<b>high</b> 31:1 44:20 47:19 49:6 67:11,14
<b>furthest</b> 8:18	<b>greater</b> 38:11 40:8 46:5 62:16,21	<b>heard</b> 23:15,21 34:1 49:4,7,23 54:10 57:15 65:4 68:5	<b>high-risk</b> 31:4,6,8,14
<b>future</b> 10:24 23:9 28:6	<b>grim</b> 43:19	<b>hearing</b> 4:22 5:21 31:18 61:8	<b>higher</b> 49:11
<hr/> <b>G</b> <hr/>	<b>group</b> 31:20		<b>highest</b> 20:18,21
<b>gambling</b> 64:1	<b>Groups</b> 6:19		<b>highlighted</b> 21:6
<b>game</b> 62:12	<b>Grove</b> 29:24		<b>highly</b> 66:12
<b>Gateway</b> 58:24	<b>grown</b> 36:7		<b>hip</b> 47:21
<b>Gavanes</b> 4:7,8 7:1,4,11 69:8,13,14	<b>guarantee</b> 14:10		<b>hold</b> 29:9,10 69:4
<b>gee</b> 54:22	<b>guess</b> 65:14		<b>Holiday</b> 45:13,18,22 46:6
<b>generated</b> 45:17	<b>guessed</b> 19:23		<b>hollow</b> 15:3
<b>generational</b> 10:22	<b>guests</b> 45:24		<b>home</b> 9:18 38:22 43:22 48:20 52:17 55:21 58:20
<b>generic</b> 24:1,6 25:17	<b>gut-wrenching</b> 23:21		<b>homeless</b> 67:12
<b>gentleman</b> 50:3 65:16	<b>guys</b> 60:16 61:12		<b>homeowner</b> 30:10
<b>George</b> 63:6	<hr/> <b>H</b> <hr/>		<b>homes</b> 16:20 58:6
<b>Gerry</b> 67:8	<b>half</b> 12:8 24:23 28:8,9 63:24		<b>hope</b> 10:1 11:16 33:3 36:5 38:22 42:10 51:16
<b>gift</b> 42:9,11	<b>hall</b> 6:9 21:15		<b>hopeful</b> 47:8
<b>give</b> 8:5,6 30:16 48:3 51:3,5	<b>hallmark</b> 55:12		<b>horrible</b> 34:19
<b>giving</b> 64:7	<b>hand</b> 46:2		<b>hospital</b> 8:10,18,21 9:3 54:20,22,24 66:11
<b>glasses</b> 52:6	<b>handed</b> 31:21		<b>hospitals</b> 9:1
<b>Glen</b> 8:23 36:21	<b>handful</b> 11:22		<b>host</b> 51:3
			<b>hotel</b> 45:22

<b>hotline</b> 58:12	<b>in-between</b> 27:15	<b>intergovernmental</b> 18:11	<b>January</b> 48:6,10
<b>hour</b> 20:7 27:5,21 28:9	<b>in-house</b> 37:12	<b>internal</b> 46:3	<b>Jessica</b> 7:12
<b>hours</b> 22:21 27:3,21,23 48:2	<b>inaccuracies</b> 63:14	<b>interventions</b> 44:2,9,13	<b>Jewish</b> 59:20
<b>house</b> 48:21	<b>inaccurate</b> 15:24	<b>introduce</b> 58:15	<b>job</b> 32:17,19 39:6,7 56:1 58:10
<b>housed</b> 45:23	<b>incident</b> 21:11 37:4 65:20	<b>introduced</b> 12:20	<b>join</b> 4:16
<b>housing</b> 39:1 64:11	<b>incidents</b> 61:20	<b>invested</b> 10:24	<b>joins</b> 7:2
<b>human</b> 43:17 61:24	<b>inclined</b> 11:19	<b>involved</b> 7:22	<b>judge</b> 28:17 67:23
<b>Humbert</b> 29:1,12,13	<b>include</b> 17:2	<b>involving</b> 37:4 65:21	<b>judgment</b> 41:18
<b>hundreds</b> 45:23	<b>included</b> 43:19	<b>irrational</b> 43:5	
<b>hurt</b> 9:19	<b>includes</b> 45:8	<b>irresponsible</b> 19:13	<hr/> <b>K</b> <hr/>
<b>hurtful</b> 49:23	<b>including</b> 6:13 40:4	<b>Irving</b> 5:10,15 21:14	<b>Kankakee</b> 38:15
<b>husband</b> 52:17 65:19,24	<b>inconsistencies</b> 63:16	<b>Ishaug</b> 38:8,11	<b>keeping</b> 63:23
<b>husband's</b> 66:8	<b>incorrect</b> 32:1	<b>issue</b> 11:2,3 17:23 18:1, 10,16,18 20:8 21:18 22:9,22 45:6 48:9,13,24 49:16 51:21 57:12 61:19 62:3,16,22 63:9	<b>key</b> 39:7
<hr/> <b>I</b> <hr/>	<b>increase</b> 23:13 66:13,22	<b>issues</b> 8:8 19:12 29:10 35:22 36:4,6 37:16 44:6 49:20 53:8 68:3	<b>KHAN</b> 7:10 29:9 68:17
<b>ideal</b> 29:19	<b>increased</b> 19:5	<b>italicized</b> 19:10	<b>kids</b> 16:14
<b>ideas</b> 15:2	<b>independent</b> 22:1	<b>Itasca</b> 7:13,15,20 8:2,22 9:8,11 10:10 11:12,22 15:6,7 18:2,10,13,18 19:4 22:12 23:9 24:23 25:15 26:10 27:13 28:3, 11 30:1,21 31:5,23 32:3, 5 33:15 37:23 38:3,10 41:8 42:13 43:2 44:22 45:11,14,16 46:8,15 47:8 48:15 49:14 51:2,7 54:18,21 56:23 61:10,18 62:6,24 63:7,9 64:8,19 65:11 66:4 67:3,9 68:2, 11	<b>kind</b> 21:18 25:18 55:12 57:24
<b>identify</b> 19:16 67:16	<b>individual</b> 6:20	<b>Itasca's</b> 11:8 18:23 45:22 61:8	<b>kindness</b> 40:13 41:23, 24 42:3
<b>IEPS</b> 31:2	<b>individuals</b> 7:9 8:13 35:17 36:12 42:1	<b>item</b> 15:6 17:24	<b>kinds</b> 16:19 21:15
<b>IFPD</b> 15:16,18,20,24 18:7,20,23 19:15	<b>inflammatory</b> 31:18	<b>items</b> 4:21 12:17 17:21	<b>knew</b> 34:13 37:9
<b>Illinois</b> 40:12	<b>information</b> 16:1 68:6, 10		<b>knowing</b> 57:12
<b>Illinois'</b> 38:12	<b>informed</b> 6:11	<hr/> <b>J</b> <hr/>	<b>knowledge</b> 12:7 28:16
<b>illness</b> 34:18,22 35:2 38:20	<b>infrastructure</b> 9:17 23:13	<b>James</b> 16:5 63:6	<b>Koziara</b> 33:13,14
<b>illnesses</b> 35:3	<b>Inn</b> 45:13,18,22 46:6	<b>Jamie</b> 65:10	
<b>immediately</b> 51:13	<b>inpatient</b> 59:8		<hr/> <b>L</b> <hr/>
<b>immense</b> 64:17 66:23 68:10	<b>inquisitive</b> 44:4		<b>lack</b> 9:17 12:6 40:1 58:17 63:21
<b>impact</b> 7:18 9:18 10:6, 22 11:1 20:24 22:5,6 23:8 28:5 32:21 34:3 45:4 52:14	<b>insight</b> 31:13		<b>Lake</b> 38:15 47:19 57:8
<b>impacted</b> 47:1 57:7	<b>insult</b> 67:15		<b>land-use</b> 53:8
<b>impacts</b> 11:6	<b>insurance</b> 35:10,12		<b>Lane</b> 11:11
<b>important</b> 7:18 43:3 47:12 59:16 65:18 66:15	<b>integrity</b> 32:16		<b>large</b> 9:18 10:15 16:16 25:19 45:22 50:24 65:2
<b>importantly</b> 60:6	<b>intelligent</b> 44:3		<b>larger</b> 68:3
	<b>interest</b> 11:4		<b>largest</b> 38:12 64:3,6 67:2
	<b>interested</b> 6:3,21 54:17 68:22		<b>lasted</b> 28:9
	<b>interesting</b> 45:5		

<b>lastly</b> 49:22	<b>limit</b> 6:16	<b>losing</b> 66:8	<b>manner</b> 6:19 19:2
<b>late</b> 46:21,22	<b>limited</b> 23:13	<b>lost</b> 43:9,13 47:18 51:16	<b>Maple</b> 7:13
<b>Laura</b> 56:20 60:7	<b>lines</b> 27:15	<b>lot</b> 29:5,14 50:5 51:17 58:10 61:16 63:2,4,9 67:1	<b>Maps</b> 26:23
<b>law</b> 8:12	<b>Linsner</b> 4:11,12 69:17, 18	<b>Lotta</b> 60:1,2 62:21	<b>marginalized</b> 8:4
<b>lawsuit</b> 64:11	<b>Lisa's</b> 58:16	<b>loud</b> 31:15	<b>marginalizing</b> 9:13
<b>lawyering</b> 15:14	<b>list</b> 7:8 17:1,11	<b>Louie</b> 47:18 52:2	<b>Mark</b> 38:11
<b>lawyers</b> 15:14	<b>listed</b> 57:23	<b>love</b> 40:13 41:22,24 42:3 48:3	<b>marshal</b> 15:17,18
<b>lead</b> 37:20	<b>listen</b> 11:6 12:3 33:9	<b>loved</b> 29:8,16,18,21	<b>mask</b> 52:7 57:21
<b>leader</b> 33:6 57:14	<b>listened</b> 50:19 63:1 66:19	<b>low</b> 21:3	<b>massive</b> 63:19 64:2
<b>leaders</b> 32:11 33:1,2	<b>listening</b> 50:17 67:24	<b>lower</b> 24:12 25:12,16	<b>Matt</b> 58:18
<b>leadership</b> 41:22	<b>lists</b> 37:8	<b>LTM</b> 47:16	<b>matter</b> 6:4,7 21:10 23:10 32:18 37:10,14 63:18 69:6
<b>leads</b> 23:15	<b>literally</b> 61:12	<b>Luckily</b> 66:10	<b>maximum</b> 20:20,22 21:21
<b>Leahy</b> 4:9,10 69:15,16	<b>Lithraloly</b> 57:5	<b>lucky</b> 30:4 40:22 41:13	<b>mayor</b> 4:1,16,19 7:6,8 11:5,9 28:24 33:12 36:19 38:7 42:16 44:10 47:14 52:4,22 56:18 59:24 65:9 67:7 68:16,18 69:9
<b>leaned</b> 12:18	<b>litigation</b> 69:6	<b>lumped</b> 25:3	<b>MC</b> 36:20
<b>learned</b> 34:14	<b>live</b> 6:23 7:13 11:11 34:3 36:22 58:21 60:2	<b>Lustig</b> 13:15 14:23 17:13,14 61:4	<b>Mcgowen</b> 36:21
<b>learning</b> 34:15	<b>lived</b> 7:20 48:14 54:19 66:2	<b>luxury</b> 30:4 32:13 33:2	<b>Mchenry</b> 38:15 57:8
<b>leave</b> 55:13	<b>lives</b> 9:22 38:4,5 40:5 43:9 54:14 68:11	<b>lying</b> 12:4	<b>meaningful</b> 39:5
<b>leaving</b> 57:10	<b>living</b> 35:7 48:20	<hr/> <b>M</b> <hr/>	<b>means</b> 18:15 26:18 31:16 67:11
<b>left</b> 14:24	<b>LLC</b> 5:9	<b>Madaras</b> 4:13 7:2 69:19, 20	<b>measures</b> 46:3
<b>legally</b> 14:20	<b>local</b> 11:4 23:24 28:16 67:18	<b>made</b> 11:18 12:23 14:8 15:23 16:12 20:1 30:6,9, 11 40:19 49:13 52:17 61:22 63:19 64:3	<b>medical</b> 44:2,19 45:16
<b>legitimate</b> 61:2	<b>locally</b> 68:3	<b>magnitude</b> 64:23	<b>medication-assisted</b> 39:16
<b>Lesign</b> 67:8	<b>located</b> 61:9	<b>main</b> 45:2	<b>medicine</b> 57:10
<b>level</b> 16:13	<b>location</b> 5:9 10:11 45:20 63:21 64:14	<b>maintain</b> 39:1	<b>Medina</b> 25:1,11
<b>levels</b> 16:7,10	<b>locations</b> 13:19	<b>make</b> 8:15 10:20,22 11:17 26:15 30:1 33:6,7 36:17 39:3 40:20 43:3 44:16 47:12 55:5,15,24 56:2,6 59:2,15 63:10,17	<b>meet</b> 28:19 40:12 53:20
<b>Leyden</b> 17:12,13,15,17, 19	<b>logs</b> 21:13	<b>makes</b> 13:11,22	<b>meeting</b> 4:2 5:6,23 6:2, 23 7:3 23:18 60:9
<b>licensed</b> 16:13	<b>long</b> 11:20 37:8 65:7 66:4,16	<b>making</b> 42:24	<b>meetings</b> 34:20
<b>lie</b> 62:4	<b>long-term</b> 37:9 57:2	<b>man</b> 44:5	<b>meets</b> 12:12
<b>lied</b> 10:8	<b>longest</b> 66:7	<b>manipulation</b> 10:8 43:6	<b>member</b> 6:20 50:9 53:5, 10
<b>lies</b> 62:5	<b>looked</b> 27:2 31:14 34:18 59:7		<b>members</b> 11:10 35:18 47:9
<b>life</b> 35:9 37:10,21 40:19 41:9 43:17 44:3,5 52:2 61:24 62:2 65:17 66:8, 14,17	<b>Loop</b> 17:2,4,7		
<b>life-changing</b> 61:13	<b>lose</b> 51:17		
<b>life-saving</b> 41:19 61:13			
<b>light</b> 17:21 30:22			
<b>liking</b> 32:23			

<b>mental</b> 37:16 38:13,20, 23 39:2 40:2 44:14,20 45:19	63:11	<b>negative</b> 30:21,22	
<b>mention</b> 13:11,22 48:12 49:3 65:14	<b>moment</b> 40:13	<b>negatively</b> 45:3	<hr/> <b>O</b> <hr/>
<b>mentioned</b> 9:2 67:19	<b>moments</b> 51:17	<b>neighbor</b> 25:8 54:7	<b>Oaks</b> 8:23
<b>met</b> 29:2	<b>moms</b> 43:11	<b>neighborhood</b> 53:24 54:16 55:1	<b>oath</b> 10:15
<b>metrics</b> 13:13	<b>money</b> 39:6	<b>neighborhoods</b> 55:4,5	<b>objection</b> 45:2 63:12
<b>Micelli</b> 47:17 50:16	<b>month</b> 5:16 6:2	<b>neighboring</b> 54:11	<b>objectively</b> 12:16 13:1 28:14
<b>Michael</b> 11:11	<b>morally</b> 14:21	<b>neighbors</b> 11:1 25:1,8, 10,15 32:23 35:18 42:12 43:12 54:9 55:7	<b>obligation</b> 30:12 46:10
<b>microphone</b> 44:11	<b>Morley</b> 52:22	<b>neighbors'</b> 54:13	<b>obverse</b> 54:12
<b>microphones</b> 25:22	<b>mother</b> 44:15	<b>nephews</b> 43:12	<b>occasions</b> 13:14
<b>middle</b> 27:11	<b>motion</b> 69:9	<b>nice</b> 36:17	<b>occurs</b> 21:11
<b>mile</b> 27:1 60:3	<b>mouth</b> 19:23	<b>nieces</b> 43:11	<b>October</b> 4:3 68:20
<b>miles</b> 38:18 48:5	<b>move</b> 41:6 53:3 68:13 69:4	<b>night</b> 5:24 58:22 69:2	<b>offense</b> 65:16
<b>Milwaukee</b> 52:13	<b>moving</b> 15:5 17:21	<b>Nimbe</b> 9:15	<b>offer</b> 12:8
<b>mind</b> 66:20 67:5	<b>multidimensional</b> 33:19	<b>nimsies</b> 67:24	<b>offered</b> 15:22 26:17
<b>mine</b> 36:23	<b>multiple</b> 13:14 18:4 43:24 63:15	<b>noise</b> 11:7	<b>offering</b> 51:2
<b>minimal</b> 22:15 45:24	<b>multiplies</b> 23:6	<b>non-haymarket</b> 61:19	<b>offers</b> 15:3
<b>minutes</b> 6:17 11:16 14:4,5,9 27:6,10 42:23 66:1,7	<b>municipal</b> 45:11	<b>nonprofit</b> 38:13 41:22 57:5,11,14 58:6	<b>office</b> 38:17 43:8 56:12
<b>misleading</b> 15:4 22:7 58:1	<b>mutual</b> 18:19 66:6	<b>noon</b> 6:8	<b>offices</b> 38:14
<b>misrepresent</b> 12:10	<hr/> <b>N</b> <hr/>	<b>North</b> 7:13	<b>officiating</b> 59:9
<b>misrepresentation</b> 30:20	<b>Naperville</b> 26:16	<b>not-in-my-back-yard</b> 46:14	<b>on-line</b> 6:8 44:11
<b>misrepresentations</b> 28:2,7	<b>Narcan</b> 24:15,19 25:13 57:16,24	<b>not-so-secret</b> 39:14	<b>one's</b> 39:7
<b>missed</b> 15:10 20:8	<b>nation</b> 64:6	<b>noticeable</b> 23:14	<b>onset</b> 38:20
<b>mistakes</b> 40:19	<b>nature</b> 16:23 64:16	<b>noticed</b> 50:22	<b>open</b> 4:19 27:21 44:21 45:19 51:21 66:20 67:5
<b>misunderstand</b> 29:5	<b>navigation</b> 58:11	<b>November</b> 43:21	<b>open-minded</b> 51:1
<b>misuse</b> 40:7	<b>nearest</b> 25:7,10	<b>number</b> 15:9,11,15 16:14 20:17 24:21 26:4 35:23 45:13 54:18 55:19 58:1,7	<b>open-minds</b> 50:24
<b>mixed-use</b> 5:13 42:21 53:18	<b>nearly</b> 43:10,22	<b>numbers</b> 15:16,17,19, 21 22:4 25:2,17 34:1 57:23	<b>opened</b> 11:4
<b>Mo</b> 7:8 68:16	<b>necessarily</b> 35:5,7 36:13 42:4	<b>nurse</b> 57:13	<b>operate</b> 38:1 57:7
<b>modified</b> 19:7	<b>necessary</b> 10:11,12 42:4 51:11	<b>nursing</b> 9:18	<b>operating</b> 45:8,23
<b>Moeller</b> 20:5,19	<b>necessities</b> 63:23		<b>operation</b> 16:14 45:18
<b>Moeller's</b> 20:14,18	<b>necessity</b> 60:14		<b>operational</b> 18:5
<b>mom</b> 41:13 44:16 57:13	<b>needed</b> 23:23 40:24 41:7 48:4 59:8 61:18 66:21		<b>operator</b> 14:22

<b>opioids</b> 47:23	<b>papers</b> 31:21 58:20	<b>perfectly</b> 34:12	<b>popular</b> 32:12 33:8
<b>opponents</b> 63:4	<b>paramedic</b> 48:17	<b>performance</b> 13:12	<b>popularity</b> 55:22
<b>opportunity</b> 11:13 33:22 43:3 51:6 60:23	<b>paramedics</b> 34:4	<b>period</b> 13:17 30:19 34:17	<b>population</b> 16:14
<b>opposed</b> 36:10	<b>parent</b> 47:7 67:11	<b>permission</b> 11:15	<b>posing</b> 40:7
<b>opposite</b> 54:1	<b>Park</b> 5:10,15 47:19	<b>permit</b> 5:12 53:18	<b>position</b> 5:19 12:12 18:6 33:5 59:23
<b>opposition</b> 55:16	<b>part</b> 15:1 17:16 22:9 25:24 26:1 28:15 60:24 68:19	<b>person</b> 6:9 57:2 69:7	<b>positioned</b> 20:19
<b>options</b> 23:17 44:15	<b>participant</b> 37:4	<b>personal</b> 44:18 47:9 55:11	<b>positive</b> 41:23 42:1 56:16
<b>order</b> 4:3 5:7,12 6:11 7:9 53:18	<b>participates</b> 18:19	<b>personally</b> 21:1 47:1	<b>possibility</b> 36:11
<b>ordinances</b> 53:8	<b>participation</b> 4:20	<b>Peterson</b> 65:10,11	<b>possibly</b> 24:10 35:21 64:4
<b>organization</b> 8:1 38:13 40:11	<b>particular</b> 25:14	<b>petition</b> 5:10,18,22 12:14 13:9	<b>potential</b> 20:19,24 21:22 26:16 31:7 44:5 61:12 66:13
<b>organizations</b> 7:24 39:22	<b>parties</b> 6:4 15:11 68:22	<b>petitioner</b> 5:8 6:3 55:19 68:22	<b>potentially</b> 34:23
<b>originally</b> 16:5	<b>partner</b> 39:11 51:8	<b>petitioning</b> 23:12	<b>power</b> 10:20
<b>out-of-the-area</b> 45:24	<b>parts</b> 26:11	<b>petitions</b> 31:21 32:1	<b>Powers</b> 4:14,15 69:21, 22
<b>outlined</b> 17:22 18:20	<b>past</b> 13:4 30:18 38:15 43:15 52:18 57:6	<b>phantom</b> 10:13	<b>practices</b> 40:15
<b>outpatient</b> 39:16 59:4,6	<b>patient</b> 9:4 21:11 58:18	<b>phonetic</b> 57:5	<b>pray</b> 41:17
<b>outreach</b> 39:15	<b>patients</b> 7:16 9:6,19 21:7,9 24:4 29:15	<b>physical</b> 34:11	<b>prayer</b> 41:15
<b>over-medicating</b> 35:22	<b>patients'</b> 9:22	<b>picture</b> 21:5 51:2	<b>Pre-registration</b> 6:6
<b>over-prescribed</b> 47:21	<b>Paula</b> 36:20	<b>pieces</b> 18:2	<b>prejudice</b> 46:14
<b>overdose</b> 40:3 43:20 47:18 51:18 57:17	<b>pawns</b> 10:9	<b>place</b> 29:20 61:5	<b>preschooler</b> 31:15
<b>overdoses</b> 43:9,14,24 58:5,6	<b>pay</b> 28:16 35:12	<b>placement</b> 58:19	<b>preschoolers</b> 31:5,6,9
<b>overheard</b> 23:17	<b>PC</b> 5:8	<b>placing</b> 65:12	<b>prescription</b> 35:11 47:22
<b>overlap</b> 22:16 23:1,5	<b>penalize</b> 49:16,20	<b>plan</b> 5:7,12,17,18 6:13 54:8 62:17,22 68:8,12	<b>Present</b> 4:6,8
<b>overlooked</b> 63:18	<b>pending</b> 69:6	<b>planned</b> 5:11 53:17,20	<b>presentations</b> 6:3 66:20 68:21
<b>override</b> 46:10	<b>people</b> 6:18 8:6 9:9,20 10:17 12:4 29:7,22 31:17 32:3 34:22 35:5,7 36:9 37:20 38:24 42:7 44:10 47:1 48:8,23 49:17,18,21 50:5,11 51:2,17 54:24 55:6,10,18,21,23 56:20 57:3,6,18 58:12 59:12, 14,16 61:20 63:5,9,22 64:7,21	<b>planning</b> 15:1 28:21 30:3 38:3 44:24 46:10 52:21,23 56:10	<b>presented</b> 23:24 56:7 64:18
<b>oversights</b> 64:2		<b>pledge</b> 4:17,18	<b>presents</b> 46:5
<b>owned</b> 21:17		<b>plenty</b> 40:19	<b>Preserve</b> 60:2
<b>owner</b> 5:8 33:15 49:6		<b>point</b> 19:16,19,22 20:2, 3,6,8,10 32:14 33:3 34:8 44:2 62:12 63:11 67:9	<b>pressure</b> 47:12
<hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>P</b></p> <hr/>		<b>pointed</b> 15:8	<b>pretty</b> 60:10
<b>p.m.</b> 6:10	<b>percent</b> 25:12	<b>points</b> 36:3	<b>prevalence</b> 25:14
<b>paid</b> 59:11	<b>perception</b> 30:5 32:12, 24 33:10	<b>policy</b> 53:9,12 56:5,8	<b>prevent</b> 51:9
<b>painkillers</b> 47:22	<b>perceptions</b> 34:24 35:3	<b>political</b> 10:9 47:12	<b>preventable</b> 43:14
<b>pair</b> 22:16,23			

<b>preventative</b> 51:10	<b>proposal</b> 12:12 21:22 28:19,21 45:8 55:9 68:6, 13	<hr/> <b>Q</b> <hr/>	<b>recommended</b> 5:17
<b>prevention</b> 40:17 42:5 66:22	<b>proposed</b> 16:8,17,18 19:6 26:2 42:21 43:4 46:1,4 54:8 56:16 64:17 67:22	<b>quality</b> 44:20	<b>recommending</b> 5:19
<b>previous</b> 12:21 14:15 23:2 43:24	<b>protect</b> 67:16	<b>question</b> 32:16 45:14 56:13	<b>reconvene</b> 68:19,23
<b>pride</b> 50:23	<b>protection</b> 18:5 19:4,10 67:14,18	<b>questions</b> 19:20 26:18	<b>record</b> 6:12 11:17,21 15:19
<b>primarily</b> 53:8	<b>prove</b> 32:20	<b>quick</b> 60:10	<b>recover</b> 8:7 66:11
<b>primary</b> 39:3	<b>proved</b> 32:20	<b>quickly</b> 29:13	<b>recovering</b> 60:6
<b>private</b> 45:8	<b>proven</b> 37:18	<b>quietly</b> 37:2	<b>recovery</b> 16:20 29:23 39:1,7 41:10,11 42:8,11 57:2,4 58:6 60:19
<b>privilege</b> 52:19	<b>provide</b> 13:9,15 16:7 33:19	<b>quote</b> 14:3,7 15:9 19:1, 3,7,8,9,14,20 20:18 22:3 59:19	<b>reduce</b> 26:3
<b>problem</b> 22:23 23:6,7 47:5 64:12	<b>provided</b> 15:19,24 23:22 38:22	<hr/> <b>R</b> <hr/>	<b>referred</b> 5:19 31:4 47:2
<b>problems</b> 17:8 25:21 57:21	<b>providing</b> 13:11	<b>radius</b> 27:1	<b>referring</b> 31:7
<b>procedures</b> 6:5	<b>proving</b> 32:6,8	<b>random</b> 10:13 11:18	<b>refers</b> 31:16
<b>proceed</b> 41:19	<b>PRUYN</b> 4:1,16,19 7:8 11:9 28:24 33:12 36:19 38:7 42:16 44:10 47:14 52:4 56:18 59:24 65:9 67:7 68:16,18 69:9	<b>range</b> 12:11	<b>refuted</b> 45:7
<b>proceedings</b> 6:21 63:17 64:14	<b>psychiatric</b> 44:20	<b>rates</b> 39:24	<b>regarding</b> 62:3
<b>process</b> 14:20 53:3 65:7	<b>psychological</b> 37:16	<b>reach</b> 24:9 26:4	<b>regional</b> 64:4
<b>productive</b> 37:21 50:8	<b>PTSD</b> 35:21	<b>read</b> 5:3 16:20 17:6,18	<b>registration</b> 6:8,9,11
<b>profession</b> 34:13	<b>public</b> 5:7,21,23 6:1,6, 10 9:8,16 15:19 26:12,23 27:4,7,16 29:4,13,16,22 30:5 32:12,24 33:10 35:5,13 36:13 38:9 42:18 46:12 47:11 53:9,12 56:5 63:21 65:20 68:18	<b>reading</b> 17:5 31:15	<b>regret</b> 40:21
<b>professional</b> 33:21 54:5	<b>purports</b> 43:16	<b>ready</b> 7:5,6 47:24 59:17 68:13	<b>regrets</b> 40:18
<b>professionals</b> 44:14	<b>purpose</b> 39:6	<b>real</b> 23:8 62:3	<b>regularly</b> 21:8
<b>professor</b> 52:12	<b>purposes</b> 69:5	<b>realistic</b> 46:4	<b>rehabilitate</b> 37:20
<b>program</b> 21:9,20 24:15, 16 37:3,6,7 48:19 59:4,6	<b>push</b> 62:11 63:19	<b>realize</b> 31:3	<b>reinstated</b> 37:1
<b>programming</b> 33:17,20	<b>put</b> 19:23 20:16 30:24 32:4 39:17 49:8 50:13 68:8	<b>reason</b> 12:15 23:11 31:9	<b>reject</b> 28:21
<b>programs</b> 38:14 39:3 40:16,17 42:6	<b>puts</b> 20:23	<b>reasonable</b> 23:8 28:3	<b>relate</b> 12:17
<b>project</b> 16:6 19:6 24:7 25:16 54:13 62:8 64:17 65:2,5 67:22	<b>putting</b> 9:23	<b>reasonably</b> 64:20	<b>related</b> 4:21,24 33:18 61:20 68:4
<b>projected</b> 26:5 27:18		<b>reasons</b> 7:14 17:22 60:20	<b>relation</b> 56:7
<b>projection</b> 20:14,20,21		<b>rebuttal</b> 17:14,16	<b>relevance</b> 28:17
<b>projections</b> 16:4 21:17		<b>rebutted</b> 15:13	<b>relevant</b> 13:8 17:24 18:20 26:1
<b>promise</b> 42:22		<b>receive</b> 9:24	<b>relied</b> 44:24
<b>promises</b> 10:13		<b>recess</b> 25:22 29:11	<b>reluctant</b> 60:8
<b>proof</b> 31:9 32:14,21		<b>recited</b> 4:18	<b>remarks</b> 64:12
<b>property</b> 49:5,6,11,16, 19 54:10,11		<b>recognize</b> 48:9	<b>remember</b> 35:16
		<b>recommendation</b> 28:22 46:11	<b>remind</b> 13:6
			<b>remove</b> 52:7
			<b>removed</b> 21:20 37:5

<b>Rena</b> 29:1,12	<b>response</b> 9:24 14:3 18:15	<hr/> <b>S</b> <hr/>	<b>served</b> 36:9
<b>repeatedly</b> 21:6	<b>responsibility</b> 46:9		<b>service</b> 16:7,10,13 22:2 38:9
<b>report</b> 19:3,9	<b>responsible</b> 15:3	<b>sadly</b> 44:1 50:5	<b>services</b> 7:19 13:10,12, 16 16:17 17:12 18:14 28:5,17 39:16 45:4 48:17,22 49:1 61:15
<b>reported</b> 15:16	<b>restore</b> 68:14	<b>safe</b> 21:21	
<b>reporter</b> 7:5	<b>restraint</b> 34:11	<b>safety</b> 46:5	
<b>Reporting</b> 29:24	<b>resulting</b> 40:4 53:15	<b>sanity</b> 26:21	
<b>reports</b> 5:2 63:15	<b>retired</b> 42:18	<b>sat</b> 49:24 55:17 65:22	<b>servicing</b> 52:19
<b>represent</b> 11:22,24	<b>reversals</b> 57:24 58:1	<b>sauce</b> 39:15	<b>session</b> 69:2,5
<b>request</b> 5:10 41:19 42:21 45:2 46:12 52:10 53:7,19 56:17	<b>reverse</b> 58:4,5,6	<b>save</b> 38:4	<b>set</b> 30:17 38:2 49:19
<b>requests</b> 53:2	<b>reverses</b> 57:16	<b>saved</b> 38:5 41:9 44:2	<b>share</b> 10:4 48:18 67:10
<b>required</b> 6:6 30:12,16 53:13,15	<b>review</b> 11:16 28:14 63:14	<b>saves</b> 24:15,19,21,22,23 25:6,11,13	<b>shared</b> 60:18
<b>requirements</b> 12:13 28:19 30:17 38:2	<b>reviewed</b> 15:9	<b>scaled</b> 24:3	<b>Sharon's</b> 58:18
<b>requires</b> 21:9	<b>Ridge</b> 11:11	<b>schizophrenia</b> 37:17	<b>shed</b> 17:20
<b>research</b> 52:14	<b>ridiculous</b> 10:1	<b>school</b> 7:23 31:1 42:19 47:20	<b>short-term</b> 37:8
<b>reside</b> 33:14	<b>rights</b> 8:13	<b>schools</b> 50:10 51:7 67:11	<b>show</b> 66:2
<b>resident</b> 8:2 21:1 36:21 42:19 47:8 49:9 52:16 56:23 60:5 65:11 67:3,9	<b>ripple</b> 10:5	<b>scope</b> 28:18 62:8 64:3, 16 67:22	<b>showed</b> 24:16
<b>residential</b> 5:13 39:17 42:21 53:19 64:16	<b>risk</b> 9:22 23:10 46:6 67:11,14	<b>scourge</b> 55:2	<b>showing</b> 24:14
<b>residents</b> 6:21 11:8,22 23:9 24:22,24 25:7,12 28:5,7 31:8,23 34:21 37:24 38:10 43:8 45:17 54:3,21 55:7 63:10 65:13	<b>road</b> 5:10,15 38:24 42:7	<b>search</b> 27:21	<b>shown</b> 17:1
<b>residents'</b> 31:6	<b>Rockford</b> 48:1	<b>seats</b> 55:17	<b>shows</b> 17:11 30:22
<b>resides</b> 64:14	<b>rocky</b> 42:7	<b>section</b> 65:20	<b>shut</b> 14:17,21
<b>residing</b> 31:23	<b>role</b> 53:6,9,12	<b>security</b> 45:21,24 46:3	<b>sic</b> 32:5
<b>resorts</b> 10:7	<b>roles</b> 53:4	<b>seeks</b> 44:21	<b>signed</b> 31:21 32:2
<b>resources</b> 10:4,5 58:17	<b>roll</b> 4:4 69:10	<b>seizure</b> 65:22 66:1	<b>significant</b> 44:6
<b>respect</b> 32:10 60:24	<b>room</b> 35:1 55:23 58:19 63:2	<b>selection</b> 16:12	<b>simply</b> 39:17 40:10 68:3
<b>respective</b> 53:4	<b>Rose</b> 52:5,9	<b>self-medicate</b> 37:18	<b>sincerely</b> 59:21
<b>respond</b> 13:13 14:8	<b>Roselle</b> 18:12 25:5 42:19 43:22	<b>sell</b> 64:1	<b>single</b> 16:16 23:21,23
<b>responders</b> 58:2,7	<b>round</b> 48:2	<b>send</b> 9:3	<b>sit</b> 34:20
<b>responding</b> 22:19	<b>rubber</b> 53:13	<b>seniors</b> 33:17 34:7	<b>site</b> 5:12 37:23
<b>responds</b> 15:7 22:12	<b>rules</b> 7:6	<b>sense</b> 26:15 63:19	<b>sites</b> 16:6
	<b>run</b> 57:5 58:11	<b>sensitive</b> 44:4	<b>situation</b> 35:15 66:10
	<b>rush</b> 27:21	<b>separate</b> 54:15	<b>size</b> 64:17,22,24 66:23, 24 67:22
	<b>Ryan</b> 65:19	<b>September</b> 12:2	<b>slide</b> 14:11
		<b>serious</b> 44:17 65:12	<b>smack</b> 27:14
		<b>serve</b> 8:5 24:3 27:18 64:1	<b>small</b> 10:16 28:11 50:23, 24 61:8,10 64:24 67:3,4
			<b>smart</b> 40:22
			<b>Smith</b> 31:3

<b>sober</b> 48:20 63:12	<b>spurred</b> 11:4	<b>street</b> 33:15 34:4 35:8 49:1 63:7	68:12
<b>social</b> 46:13	<b>stabilization</b> 39:15	<b>streets</b> 48:17	<b>supporters</b> 67:23
<b>society</b> 43:16	<b>stack</b> 58:20	<b>strengthen</b> 42:14	<b>supposed</b> 12:18 65:15
<b>solution</b> 62:15	<b>stage</b> 13:22	<b>strict</b> 46:2	<b>supposedly</b> 31:21
<b>solutions</b> 67:5	<b>staged</b> 13:19	<b>strike</b> 37:15	<b>surged</b> 40:3
<b>solve</b> 21:18	<b>staging</b> 13:24	<b>strong</b> 55:16	<b>surgery</b> 35:10
<b>someplace</b> 29:19	<b>stamp</b> 53:13	<b>stronger</b> 55:6	<b>surrounding</b> 10:6 62:24
<b>son</b> 43:18 44:5 46:18,22 47:18 50:3,4 52:2 57:4 58:16,18 65:21 66:8,10	<b>stand</b> 4:16	<b>struggle</b> 46:23	<b>survivors</b> 8:7
<b>son's</b> 44:12 65:17	<b>standard</b> 39:18	<b>struggled</b> 44:5	<b>Susan</b> 52:9
<b>sons</b> 43:10	<b>standards</b> 53:20 54:7 56:7	<b>struggling</b> 47:4 49:2	<b>suspect</b> 54:21
<b>soonest</b> 59:1	<b>standing</b> 41:5	<b>student</b> 67:15	<b>system</b> 18:19
<b>sought</b> 8:14	<b>stands</b> 15:9	<b>students</b> 67:17	<b>T</b>
<b>soul</b> 41:3	<b>start</b> 56:22 58:21	<b>stupor</b> 34:10	<b>t-shirts</b> 50:23
<b>sources</b> 54:2	<b>started</b> 23:3 50:12 68:14	<b>submitted</b> 24:14,18 63:14	<b>takes</b> 27:5,10
<b>South</b> 33:14	<b>starting</b> 62:12	<b>substance</b> 8:8,9 9:2 14:21 38:23 39:2 40:2 44:6 46:20 47:4 52:14 55:2 57:7,18 60:4	<b>talented</b> 44:3,13
<b>space</b> 49:10 59:10	<b>starts</b> 10:1	<b>substances</b> 57:18	<b>talk</b> 49:22 51:6,7,8 57:21 59:11
<b>spare</b> 17:4	<b>state</b> 15:17,18,20 16:1 40:11,16	<b>suburb</b> 9:4 23:12 28:12	<b>talked</b> 49:4,10
<b>speak</b> 6:19,20,22 7:24 20:7 22:4 33:8 52:6,7,10 54:6 62:19 67:9	<b>State's</b> 37:2	<b>suburbs</b> 26:24	<b>talking</b> 31:5 41:5
<b>speaking</b> 8:2 42:19 45:10	<b>stated</b> 15:7	<b>successful</b> 39:13 59:6	<b>task</b> 10:14 68:9
<b>special</b> 4:2 5:6,11,23 6:1 23:12 53:3,17,21 54:2 59:4 68:20	<b>statement</b> 5:3	<b>succumbing</b> 44:7	<b>taught</b> 35:19,20 36:1
<b>specialized</b> 39:17 44:19 47:5	<b>statements</b> 11:18 23:20	<b>suffer</b> 37:16	<b>taxes</b> 10:4 28:16 49:5,6, 11,16,19
<b>specializes</b> 38:18	<b>statistic</b> 20:6,10 58:17	<b>sufficient</b> 19:4,11 42:4	<b>taxpayers</b> 28:3
<b>specific</b> 10:10 23:22,24 69:7	<b>statistics</b> 43:6,19	<b>suggest</b> 53:23 54:14	<b>teacher</b> 42:19
<b>specifically</b> 33:16	<b>stay</b> 44:11	<b>suggestion</b> 62:13	<b>team</b> 63:5
<b>specs</b> 43:15	<b>stellar</b> 39:11	<b>suggests</b> 24:12	<b>team's</b> 58:10
<b>spending</b> 30:8	<b>stepped</b> 22:10	<b>suicidal</b> 35:22	<b>teammates</b> 63:4
<b>spent</b> 46:18 57:9 58:11	<b>Steve</b> 52:22	<b>suicide</b> 40:1	<b>teens</b> 44:7
<b>spin</b> 20:17	<b>stigma</b> 49:23 50:7 67:16	<b>summarized</b> 15:17,21 22:2	<b>ten</b> 63:11
<b>spoke</b> 12:23 31:1 65:19	<b>stigmatization</b> 8:16	<b>summarizes</b> 24:18	<b>terms</b> 14:17 24:9 31:14 45:21 48:13 52:20
<b>spoken</b> 57:1	<b>stigmatized</b> 8:3	<b>summary</b> 22:7	<b>terrifying</b> 34:22
<b>spokesperson</b> 6:19	<b>stood</b> 15:19	<b>summer</b> 47:20	<b>testified</b> 10:10,12,15,18 14:23 15:12 21:19 26:15
	<b>stories</b> 23:21 56:21	<b>support</b> 9:16,17 16:3 18:23 23:20 39:4 42:20 44:14 48:3,8 56:15 67:17	<b>testimony</b> 6:13 12:7 15:10 16:20,22 17:5,10, 14,15,18 20:5,9 22:5,8
	<b>story</b> 60:18		
	<b>strain</b> 61:15		
	<b>streamline</b> 11:19		

23:20 26:10 28:14 31:12, 22 34:2 53:23 54:1,10 56:24 65:3 67:19 68:1,5	<b>tomorrow</b> 5:24 10:21 58:21 59:18	<b>treating</b> 38:18 67:12 61:15	
<b>thing</b> 12:2 29:5 34:19 41:15 47:11 56:3 59:16	<b>ton</b> 35:20	<b>treatment</b> 9:20 14:21 16:19 23:16,22 24:7,9,10 26:19 29:21 37:7,9,12,19 39:2,16,17 40:17 41:7,19 42:6 44:15 45:20 46:4,19 47:24 48:7,19,23 51:11, 13,19 54:5 58:11,12,13 59:12 60:4 62:10 63:17 64:5,23 66:23 67:20 68:2	<b>understanding</b> 18:5
<b>things</b> 28:10 29:3 30:14 32:6 35:23,24 49:23 57:14 64:10	<b>tonight</b> 5:7,21,23 6:5 23:18 42:10,20 44:16 47:9,17 51:1 56:6,15 57:15 60:9	<b>tried</b> 40:20 63:16	<b>unethical</b> 19:13
<b>thinking</b> 51:15 54:10	<b>tonight's</b> 4:21	<b>triggers</b> 63:24	<b>unfounded</b> 12:6 16:2
<b>Thorndale</b> 13:20	<b>topic</b> 17:20	<b>trip</b> 48:2	<b>unincorporated</b> 25:2,4
<b>thought</b> 31:7 34:21 64:7 66:8	<b>topics</b> 12:11	<b>true</b> 31:10 45:11,12 61:9	<b>unique</b> 60:23
<b>thoughts</b> 51:1	<b>torn</b> 11:14 40:5	<b>trustee</b> 4:5,6,7,8,9,10, 11,12,13,14,15 6:24 7:2, 4,11 56:1 69:4,8,11,12, 13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20, 21,22	<b>unit</b> 20:7
<b>thousand</b> 65:13	<b>touch</b> 43:23	<b>trustees</b> 6:12 10:19	<b>University</b> 52:13
<b>thousands</b> 39:12 41:11, 12	<b>tough</b> 33:7	<b>truth</b> 9:16	<b>unlike</b> 43:23
<b>threat</b> 40:8	<b>towards</b> 26:22 49:18	<b>turn</b> 5:2 6:24 41:14	<b>unpopular</b> 55:20,21
<b>threatened</b> 64:11	<b>town</b> 7:15 9:19 10:16 11:2 30:22 49:11,13 50:1,23 54:14 61:5,8,10, 13 64:6,18,24 65:13,23 67:2,4	<b>turned</b> 21:8	<b>unprecedented</b> 39:24
<b>thresholds</b> 38:12,22	<b>town's</b> 10:24 61:16 66:5	<b>twin</b> 65:22	<b>unrebutted</b> 15:9
<b>Thresholds'</b> 39:12	<b>towns</b> 10:6	<b>twisted</b> 33:10	<b>upcoming</b> 46:17
<b>throughout</b> 24:20 30:18 31:11 64:13	<b>tragic</b> 44:8	<b>tying</b> 34:10	<b>upset</b> 55:18
<b>throw</b> 24:6	<b>tragically</b> 46:21	<b>type</b> 10:2	<b>urge</b> 63:13
<b>tied</b> 61:17,22	<b>Trail</b> 13:21	<b>typically</b> 45:23	<b>user</b> 57:13
<b>time</b> 7:21 11:3 30:8 34:8, 17 38:9 41:13,14 42:10 44:1 46:18 48:15 49:4 50:9 52:3 54:22 56:12 59:13,22 60:16,18 64:15 65:6 66:3,11,16 67:6	<b>train</b> 9:6 27:8,14,15,24 28:1 33:20	<b>Uber</b> 59:11,15	<b>usually</b> 51:14
<b>timely</b> 6:18	<b>trains</b> 27:7	<b>unacceptable</b> 43:16	<b>utilization</b> 20:7
<b>times</b> 18:4 33:6 55:17 57:1	<b>transparent</b> 12:5,10	<b>unaccounted</b> 21:16	
<b>tipping</b> 19:16,19,22 20:1,3,6,8,10	<b>transport</b> 26:16 27:4,7	<b>unanimous</b> 60:10	<hr/> <b>V</b> <hr/>
<b>today</b> 6:8 7:24 10:21 39:14 41:5,14 50:17 60:21,22	<b>transportation</b> 7:18 8:21,24 9:8 21:21 26:12, 23 27:16 29:4,14,17,22 35:6,13 36:14 59:12 63:22	<b>unanimously</b> 45:1	<b>valid</b> 54:12
<b>toddlers</b> 65:24	<b>trauma</b> 8:11 35:23	<b>unclear</b> 28:6	<b>valuable</b> 62:1
<b>told</b> 13:24	<b>traumatizing</b> 39:21	<b>undermine</b> 12:11	<b>value</b> 28:11
<b>toll</b> 39:24	<b>treasure</b> 55:12	<b>understand</b> 10:23 29:3, 4,14 30:10 31:3 36:5 51:20 55:10,14,22 60:24	<b>values</b> 54:11
<b>Tommy</b> 59:3	<b>treasured</b> 56:13		<b>Van</b> 56:9
	<b>treat</b> 9:11		<b>variance</b> 54:7
	<b>treatable</b> 44:19		<b>variances</b> 53:3
	<b>treated</b> 35:4 63:23		<b>various</b> 7:23 11:18
			<b>vehicles</b> 9:14
			<b>Venetucci</b> 42:17,18 44:12
			<b>versus</b> 54:18
			<b>vice</b> 52:11
			<b>victims</b> 8:8
			<b>views</b> 11:24
			<b>village</b> 5:5,18 6:7,9 14:17 19:18,24 21:15 28:14 43:2 44:24 46:8,16

47:8 53:5,10,24 54:3,14  
62:15 69:6

**Village's** 6:23 45:4

**vision** 14:24

**vital** 41:20

**voice** 8:5 10:20 11:21,23

**volume** 20:19 21:22

**volunteer** 47:16

**vote** 11:7 28:20 30:4  
32:13,15 55:22 56:16  
60:10 65:5

**voted** 68:9

**votes** 55:20,24

**vulnerability** 37:14

---

**W**

---

**wait** 27:23 28:1 66:4,16

**waited** 65:24

**waiting** 37:8 58:24 66:9

**walk** 27:13

**wall** 56:12

**Walnut** 33:14 34:3

**wanted** 8:14,15 12:2  
32:9 34:19 57:15

**Warner** 56:9

**watch** 6:22

**watched** 65:23

**watching** 10:23 44:10

**Waukegan** 58:23 59:14

**weakness** 44:18

**wealth** 9:14

**website** 24:17

**week** 26:22 27:22 49:9  
59:5,6,11,18

**weekend** 59:9

**weigh** 52:2 53:7

**weird** 17:12

**welcomed** 36:22

**well-being** 40:2

**well-documented** 26:9

**well-referenced** 20:15

**West** 5:9,15 17:2,4,7  
21:14 27:3,5,17 63:6

**Westmont** 38:17

**Wheaton's** 27:4

**widespread** 40:7

**wife** 35:14

**willing** 11:20 14:16  
48:10

**willingness** 62:24

**Winfield** 49:8,9,15

**Wisconsin** 52:13

**wisdom** 47:9

**wise** 41:18

**wish** 6:22 41:15 66:15,  
17

**witness** 19:16

**witnessed** 42:2

**witnesses** 12:23 15:12  
18:3,20

**Wolf** 11:10,11 25:24

**women** 52:14

**wonder** 49:13

**wonderful** 13:8 38:16

**Wood** 18:11,12 25:9  
60:3

**wording** 30:23 32:2

**words** 19:23 31:19

**work** 8:1,6,10,11,14,17  
14:24 33:19 39:9 40:14  
43:13 53:15 59:7 61:4  
62:14,15,24 64:6 65:23  
68:14

**workday** 26:22

**worked** 35:8 58:2

**workers** 35:21

**working** 34:7

**works** 8:2 10:17 24:8

50:9 55:1 61:5

**world** 35:24

**worried** 32:22

**worse** 19:7

**wrong** 61:24

---

**Y**

---

**yard** 65:22

**year** 5:16 12:20 23:7  
24:16,22,24 25:7,11 26:5  
27:22 48:21

**year-and-a-half** 35:19

**years** 7:21 16:14 24:19,  
21 30:19 34:6,7 36:8,24  
38:16,21 39:10,21 40:23  
41:21 43:15,23 44:8  
52:18,20 54:20 57:6,9  
63:2,11 66:19 68:1,14

**young** 38:19 44:4 55:6

**youth** 38:19

**Youtube** 6:23

---

**Z**

---

**zero** 9:8,9 13:11 48:22

**zoning** 12:12,14 14:14,  
19 28:19 42:20 45:1  
46:11,17 52:21,23 53:2,  
5,6,7,14 54:9 56:3,10  
63:18